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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REFORT

* To the City Council
City of Hibbing, Minnesota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govermmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Hibbing, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31,
2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in -

. accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. ' -

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Public Utilities Commission, which represent 93 percent, 92 percent,
and 100 percent, respectively, of assets, net positions, and revenues of the aggregate discretely
presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report
thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as i relates to the amounts included for the

- Public Utilities Commission, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrofler
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

. the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

. error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also included evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial -
statements. :

We 'believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audif opinions. :

2302 East Third Avenue Hibbing, MN 55746 Phone: (218) 262-3404 Fax: (218) 262-10679.
Website: www.fortco-cpa.com .



To the City Council
July 24, 2015
Page 2

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Hibbing, Minnesota, as of December 31,
2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Financial Statement Classification that Represents a Correction of a Previous
Misstatement

As discussed in Note 19 to the financial statements, in 2014 the City identified certain classification
misstatements in the 2013 Statement of Activities that affected the comparability of Management's .
Discussion and Analysis. The reasons for the classification misstatements and the restated 2013

~ Statement of Activities are disclosed in Note 19. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information, on pages 5 to 15 and 66 to 67 be '
presented to suppiement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not.express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Hibbing, Minnesota's basic financial statements. The introductory section, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the Hibbing Economic Development
Authority's (a component unit) combining financial statements and statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly fo the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by
us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above,
and the report of the other auditors, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The introductory and the statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 24, 2015,
on our consideration of the City of Hibbing, Minnesota's internal control over financial reporting and on
our test of its compliance with certain provisions of faws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That reportis an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Hibbing,
Minnesota’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ot < Cﬂvw’mﬂ?/
Fort & Company, PA
July 24, 2015
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

The City of Hibbing, Minnesota's management's discussion and analysis provides an overview of the City's
financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2014. Since this information is designed to focus on the
current year's activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts, it should be read in conjunction with the
City of Hibbing, Minnesota's financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

=

I

11

Governmental activities have a total net position of $36,043,301. Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt represents $19,099,238 of the total.

Business-type activities have a total net position of $24,819,724. Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt represents $23,782,656 of the iotal.

The Hibbing Economic Development Authority (EDA) has a total net position of $3,012,752. Invested
in capital assets, net of related debt represents $282,553 of the total.

The City of Hibbing's primary government's net position increased by $4,008,026 for the year ended
December 31, 2014. The Governmental activities’ net position increased by $3,128,956 and the
business-type activities' net position increased by $879,070.

The EDA's net position decreased by $618,615 due to current year expenses incurred by the City to
acquire the former Ogle's grocery store and prepare the site for development in connection with the
Hampton Inn Tax Increment Financing District #12. Tax revenues will be recognized in future years
as the tax increments are earned and retained by the City for repayment of the bonds issued to
finance the current year's acquisition and site development expenses.

The net cost of governmental activities was $14,155,226 for the current year. The net cost was
funded by general revenues and other items totaling $17,284,182.

Governmental funds' fund balances increased by $3,305,125.

The increase in Governmental Funds' fund balance was attributable to the City's success in
monitoring costs while maintaining or exceeding expected revenues. The General Fund, 2013A G.O.
Bond Debt Service Fund, Permanent improvement Capital Projects Fund, and Mining Effects Capital
Projects Fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $2,744,769, $308,834, $121,858, and $222,318,
respectively. These increases were offset by expenditures exceeding revenues in the Capital
Equipment and Improvement Capital Projects Fund by $83,102.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS {continued)

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements. The City
of Hibbing, Minnesota's basic financial statements consist of three parts: government-wide financial statements,
fund financial statements and notes to the financial statements. The management's discussion and analysis
(this section) is required to accompany the basic financial statements, and therefore, is included as required
supplementary information. The following chart demonstrates how the different pieces are interrelated.

Management's discussion and analysis
{required supplementary information)

Government-wide . Fund financial
financial statements h statements

Notes to the financial statements

Requﬁred supplementary information
(other than MD&A)

Notes to required supplementary information
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

New Accounting Pronocuncements

As further described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the City of Hibbing implemented GASB Statement
No. 89, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations and GASB Statement No. 70,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees for the year ended December 31,
2014,

Government-wide Financia) Statements

There are two government-wide financial statements. . The statement of net position and the statement of
activities provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a long-term view of the
City's finances. The fund financial statements explain how governmental activities were financed in the short-
term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in
more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant
funds. :

The statement of net position and the statement of activities report information about the City, as a whale, and
about its activities in a way that helps the reader determine whether the City's financial condition has improved
or declined as a result of the year's activities. These statements include all assets and liabilitiss using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of
the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These government-wide statements repoit the City's net position and how it has changed. You can think of the
City's net position (the difference between assets and deferred outflows versus liabilities and deferred inflows)
as one way to measure the City's financial health, or financial position. Increases or decreases in the City's net
position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, other
nonfinancial factors; such as changes in the City's property tax base and state aid and the condition of the
City's buildings and streets also need to be considered in assessing the overall heaith of the City.

In the statement of net position and the statement of activities, activities are shown in the governmental
activities, business-type activities or either one of the two compoenent units (EDA or PUC):

Governmental activities

Most of the City's basic services are reported hére, including general government, public safety, public
works, culture and recreation, economic development and transportation. Property taxes, state and
federal grants and aid finance most of these activities.

Business-Type activities

The City charges a fee to customers to help to cover all or most of the cost of services it provides.
The City's sewer operations and refuse removal services are reported here.

Component Units

The Hibbing Economic Development Authority (EDA) and the Hibbing Public Utilities Commission
(PUC) are reported here. EDA does not prepare separate financial statements. Complete financial
statements of the PUC may be obtained from Hibbing Public Utilities Commission, 19th Street and
East 6th Avenue, Hibbing, Minnesota 55748.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the significant funds-not the City as a whole.
Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the City establishes
some funds to help it contrel and manage money for a particular purpose or to show that it is meeting legal
responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other money. The City's two kinds of funds {(governmental
and proprietary) use different accounting methods.

Governmental funds

Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows
into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These
funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. This method measures cash and
all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental funds statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general government operations and the basic services
it provides. Governmental funds information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. The
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation
statement following each governmental fund financial statement.

Proprietary funds

When the City charges customers for the services it provides (whether to outside customers or to
other units of the City) these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds
are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities. In fact, the City's proprietary funds are the same as the business-type
activities that are reported in the government-wide statements bui provide more detail and additional
information, such as cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The City's combined net position increased from $56,854,999 to $60,863,025. This increase includes $184,272 of operations transfer
in for the Hibbing Racetrack. Looking at the net position and net expenses of governmental and business-type activities separately,
highlights the details of the increase in net position for the year. The analysis below focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes
in net position (Table 2) of the City's governmental and business-type activities.

Current and other assets
Capital assets

Total assets

Long-term liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net position
Invested in capital assets
net of debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

Table 1
Net Position
Governmental ~ Business-Type Total

Activities Aclivities Primary Government

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
32127918  $ 28,666,950 $ 1524433 § 1,051,378 § 33,652,349 $ 29,718,328
24,061,474 24,810,052 36,204,812 36,412,089 61,256,286 61,222,121
57089390  § 53477,002 § 37,819245 § 37483447 § 94,908,635 $ 90,940,449
17,914,534  $ 17,628,243  § 12,506,824 § 13,032,127 § 30,511,358  $ 30,660,370
3,131,555 2,934,414 402,697 490,668 3,634,252 3,425,080
21046089 $ 20,562,657 $ 12,999,521 § 13522793 $ 34,045610 $ 34,085450
19,099,238 $ 18,382,108 $ 23,782,656 $ 23,468,203 3 42,881,894 $ 41,850,311
5,285,490 4,456,163 - - 5,285,490 4,456,163
11,668,573 10,076,074 1,037,068 472 451 12,695,641 10,548,625
. 36,043,301 $ 32,914,345 $ 24,819,724 $ 23,940,654 $ 60,863,025 $ 56,854,999

Net position of the City's governmental activities increased by 9.50 percent ($36,043,301 in 2014 compared to $32,914,345 in 2013).
Unrestricted net position (the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by
debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other requirements} changed from $10,076,074 at December 31, 2013, to $11,6568,673 at the

end of 2014.

Net position of the City's business-type activities increased 3.67 percent ($24,818,724 in 2014 compared to $23,940,654 in 2013).
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31, 2014

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2014 2013 201 013 2014 2013

Revenues '
Program revenues:

Feés, fines, charges, and other $ 2812617 $ 3,069,859 $. 5728129 $ 57258992 $ 8,540,746 $ 8,795,851

Operating grants and coniributions 1,622,432 1,331,588 - - 1,622,432 $ 1,331,588

Capital grants and contributions 937,669 1,418,973 466,665 1,632,168 1,404,334 $ 2,949,141
General revenues: _ :

Taxes 8,957,817 8,427 474 - - 8,957,817 8,427 474

Intergovernmental 8,109,853 8,024,094 - - 8,108,953 8,024,094

Other general revenues (expenses) 57,362 (20,600) (47,778) 12,562 9,584 _ (8,038)

Total revenues 22,397 850 22,249,388 6,147,016 7,270,722 28,544,866 29,520,110

Program expenses:

General government 3,439,014 3,161,783 - <o 3,438,014 3,161,783

Public safeiy 7,648,708 7,662,168 - - 7,648,708 7,662,166

Public works 4,850,785 7,083,866 - - 4,850,785 7,083,966

Culture and recreation 3,038,500 3,017,242 - - 3,038,500 3,017,242

Other 314,197 295583 590 9,214 314,787 304,797

Interest 136,740 01,283 234,512 223,640 371,262 314,023

Garbage and refuse collection - 4 2,454,079 2,314,388 2,454,079 2,314,388

Sewer operating and maintenance - - 2,577,879 2,455,534 2,577,879 2,455,534

Memorial building concessions - - 886 862 888 862

Total program expenses 19,427,944 21,312,023 5,267,946 5,003,638 24,695,890 28,315,661

Transfers (35,222) {455,000} - 350,000 (35,222) (105,000}
Operations transfer in 194,272 - - - 194,272 -
Increase {decrease) in net position $ 3128956 § 482365 $§ 879,070 $ 2817084 § 4008028 § 3,099449

The City's total revenues decreased by $975,244 or 3.30 percent. The totai cost of all programs and services decreaséd by $1,619,771
or 6.16 percent. Our analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental, business-type activities, and EDA -

Component Unit activity.

Governmental Activities

Revenue for the City's governmental activities inci’eased by $148,462 or 0.67 percent and total expenses decreased by $1,884,079 or
8.84 percent. These differences created an increase in the changes in net position for governmental activities of $2,646,591 in 2014

compared to 2013.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $19,427,944. As shown in the Statement of Activities, some of the cost were paid
by those who directly benefited from the programs, $2,812,617, or by other governments and organizations that subsidized certain
programs with grants and confributions, $10,570,054. Taxpayers paid $8,957 817 in taxes in 2014.

-10-



CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014 '

Table 3 represents the cost of each of the City's four largest programs as well as each program's net cost (total cost less
revenues generated by the activities). The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the City's taxpayers
by each of these programs.

Table 3
Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

2014 . 2013 2014 2013
Public safety $ 7,648,708 $ 7,662,166 $ 4,934,863 $ 4,683,700
Public works 4,850,785 - 7,083,966 3424443 6,225,192
General government 3,439,014 3,161,783 3,127,405 2,827,586
Culture and recreation 3,038,500 3,017,242 2,651,574 1,635,792
Other 314,197 295,583 (119,779) 30,050
Interest on long-term debt 136,740 91,283 136,740 91,283

Totals : $ 19,427,944 3 21,312,023  $ 14155246 $ 15,493,603

Business-Type Activities

Revenues of the City's business-type activities were $6,147,016 and expenses were $5,267,946 (see Table 2). There
was an increase in net position of $879,070 during the year ended December 31, 2014, The factors driving these
results include:

Operations produced $695,285 of income for the year ended December 31, 2014.
The City recognized capital grants tofaling $466,665 for the year.
The City had non-operating interest expense totaling $234,512 for the year.

EDA Component Unit Activity

The EDA had a net decrease in net position of $618,615 for the year ended December 31, 2014. General revenues,
including items such as taxes and grants not restricted to specific programs, accounted for $254,212 of this, with net
program expenses over revenue of $872,827. The EDA's net position decreased by $618,615 due to current year
expenses incurred by the City to acquire the former Ogle's grocery store and prepare the site for development in
connection with the Hampton Inn Tax Increment Financing District #12. Tax revenues will be recognized in fuiure years
as the tax increments are earned and retained by the City for repayment of the bonds issued to finance for the current
year's acquisition and site development expenses.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

As the City completed the vear, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $28,510,579 which is
greater than last year's total of $25,205,454. The general fund had an increase of $884,347 due to the City's plan to
ceontinue to monitor costs and a budget plan for revenues to exceed expenditures. The Library Fund had a $37,759 -
increase in fund balance after considering a $10,461 transfer from the General Fund. The largest increase in other
governmental funds was for $829,000 in the Other Post Employment Benefits Debt Service Fund which was due to
current year transfers. The next largest increase was $459,858 in the Permanent improvement Capital Projects Fund
which was mainly due to current year transfers.

11 -



CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Actual charges to appropriations (expenditures) were $975,764 below the final budget amounts. The most significant
positive variances occurred in the City's miscellaneous, $374,405, and public safety, $335,851. The most significant
negative variance ($174,258) occurred in the City's transportation expenditures. Resources available for appropriation
were above the final budgeted amounts by $997,598, The City received more in intergovernmental revenue, taxes,
licenses and permit revenue, charges for services, fines, gifts and contributions, and miscellaneous revenue than
expected.

12



CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2014, the City had $61,256,286 invested in a broad range of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, including
land, land improvements, buildings, infrastructure and equipment (see Table 4 below). This amount represents a net increase
{including additions and deductions) of $34,164 over |ast year.

Table 4
Capital Assets at Year-end
(Net of Depreciation)
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities -_Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Land, improvemenis, intangibles,
artwork, gravel roads $ 6508440 $ 6406440 $ 423719 $ 423719  $ 6832150 $ 6,830,159
Buildings and improvemenis 8,093,527 7,240,650 14,403,137 15,079,241 22,496,664 22,319,891
Infrastructure ] 6,178,645 6,443,965 12,546,312 12,633,862 18,724,957 10,077,827
Equipment, machinery and furniture 3,186,538 3,083,087 984,289 801,630 4.170,825 3,084,717
Construction in progress 994,326 1,835,910 7,937,365 7,373,618 8,931,881 9,009,528
Totals $ 24961474 $ 24,810,052 § 36,294,812 § 36412070 $ 61,256,286 $ 61,022,120
This year's major addifions included:
Heart start monitor $ 16,876
Stryker power cot ' 14,948
Mower & snowblower 36,408
Vote tabulator systemn 19,740
Three thermal imaging cameras 15,420
HD live video mixer 27,883
HP server 10,100
Two 2014 ambulances 301,864
Two 2014 Ford Goshen buses 175,732
2015 GMC Sierra 250 crew 42 870
Dump box 24,692
2015 Ford F350 45,008
Two 2014 Dodge squad cars 58,639
City Hall remodel 26,262
Townline firehall furnaces 11,126
Curling Club renovation 1,119,799
" Pavilion roof 12,496
Vic Power bitumous 22,844
Carey Lake beach house 24,179
Vic Power chain link fence 19,243
Blacktopping cemetery 19,469
Tapala Road 511,285
Memorial Building Curling Club 18,673
Memorial Building improvements 122,827
Hi-speed internet 13,830
- City Hall remodel and others 173,225
31st Street 122,186
Lindquist Road 315,457
Diilon Road 97,714
Corey Tracts Road 129,341
Ansley Road (Marshview) addition 153,963
Sewer projects 563,736
Storm sewer projects 252,321
2015 International truck 99,094
Pak-Mor cu yd body 81,188
Total additions $ 4,700,437

More detailed information about the City's capital assets is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements.
-13- '



CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION {continued)
Debt
At year-end, the City had $31,817,123 in iong-term debt outstanding versus $31,215,276 last year (see Table 5).

Table 5
Outstanding Debt at Year-end

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities EDA Companent Unit
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
General obligation bonds . .

(backed by the Ciiy) $ 5424037 $ 5905038 § - % -~ $ 1305765 $ 554,906
Certificates of indebtedness 93,000 153,000 - - ‘ - -
Capital leases 345,199 369,906 - - - -
Police and Fire indebiedness - - - - - -
General obligation revenue notes - - 9,748,166 10,040,229 - -
General obligation revenue bonds - - 2,763,990 2,903,637 - -
Compensated absences 275,339 213,885 84,668 B8,261 - .
OPERB liability 11,776,959 10,986,414 - - - -

Total § 17,814,534 $ 17,628,243 $ 12,596,824 $ 13,032,127 $ 1,305,765 $ 554,506

The State limits the amount of net debt that the City's can issue to 3 percent of the market value of all taxable property in the City. The
City's outstanding qualifying net debt of $5,424,037 is significantly below the $18,536,940 State-imposed limit.

For more details on the City's outstanding debt at year end refer to Note 7, Long-Term debt.

MODIFIED APPROACH FOR GRAVEL ROADS

The City has elected to use the modified approach to report its gravel roads infrastruciure assets. The City anticipated spending a
certain amount annually to preserve the condition of these grave! roads to a certain minimai level. Annually the gravel roads condition
will be assessed to compare to the level the government has established.

There was no significant change in the assessed condition of the gravel roads from the previous assessment.

The current assessed condition compares favorably with the condifion level the City has established.

The estimated annual cost to maintain the gravel roads was $306,000 as compared to the actual costs during the current year
of $324,888, which included 6 road lifts and 7 spot road repairs.

- 14 -



CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2014

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the 2015 budget, tax rates, and fees that will be
charged for the business-type activities.

The Gensral Fund expenditures for 2015 are budgeted to be $17,114,254, which is a $125,414 decrease from the 2014 final
budget. This is a 0.7 percent decrease from the 2014 original General Fund budgeted expenditures of $17,239, 668. Of the
decreased expenditures, $829,000 relates to a transfer out to fund Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) liability, offset by
an increase in personnel costs of $571,000, operating expenditure decrease of $27,000, and a decrease in revenues of
$159,000.

Property tax levies increased 3.28 percent for 2015 despite the decrease in the General Fund spending due to a separate
levy for OPEB debt service and decreases in the capital and permanent improvement jevies.

Consistent with the national and global economy, rising health care and fuel costs significantly impact the City's budgets.

The 2013 State Legislature revised the local government aid (LGA) formula used to distribute LGA funding. The "need" factor will be
three-tiered depending on the population of the city with separate calculations for cities under 2,500 in population, cities between 2,500
and 10,000 in population, and cities over 10,000 in population because different factors explain variation in a city's revenue base for
different size cities. All three formulas were derived using revenue base (levy plus aid) as a proxy for city need. The new formula also
stabilizes a city's allocation by capping the maximum annual loss for any city as well as distributing proportionally larger increases to
cities whose current aid amount is furthest from their unmet need. For Hibbing, these changes will increase anticipated LGA by
$100,965 in-2015, up from the $7,994,316 received in 2011, 2012, and 2013. This anticipated 2015 LGA is $12,875, greater than the
$8,082,406 received in 2014.

The City relies heavily on State LGA and taconite aids to fund its budget. LGA payments are anticipated to supply 47.3% of General
Fund revenues, with taconite aids expected to furnish 12.4% of General Fund revenues. The City is subject to cuts from the State
government at times when the State budget is not balanced. Additionally the price of steel in the global market affects the City due to
taconite aid received in lieu of property taxes, which is based on tonnage producad. The downfturn in mining which began during 2015
will reduce the amount of taconite aids received during 2016 through 2018 and even further into the future if the production contlnues to
decline.

The City's 2015 capital budget calls for it to spend another $2,563,155 for capital projects, principally for the following:

Ambulance $ 260,000
Cemetery 37,000
Engineering 7,000
General government 115,000
Library 95,000
Memorial Building ' 16,000
Parks, recreation and arena 444 000
Public safety 236,734
Public works 786,000
Other 566,421

Total $ 2,563,155

Some of the projects are subject to obtaining grants.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to pravide our citizens, {axpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general overview of
the City's finances and to show the Gity's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional information, contact the City's Financial Director, Sherri Renskers, City of Hibbing, 401 East 21st Slreet Hibbing, Minnesota
55748,

-15-
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

December 31, 2014
Primary government Component Units
Business -
Governmental Type
Aclivities Activities Total EDA PUC
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 26387676 $ 2,402,093 $ 28,789,769 $ 2185501 § -
Investments 2,483,629 - 2,483,629 - -
Taxes receivable 449 773 2,200 451,973 128,407 -
Special assessments receivable 153,165 88,425 241,580 .. -
Accounts receivable 232,686 23,142 255,828 1,089 7,260,153
Interest receivable 4,630 - 4,630 - -
Unbilled revenues - - - - 1,456,038
Internal balances . 1,698,123 (1,698,123} - - -
Due from other governments 492 766 251,887 744,653 - -
Due from developers 197,528 - 197,526 - -
Due from other component units - 451,998 451,998 - -
Due from primary government - - - 345,189 -
Loans receivable . 8,734 - 8,734 1,391,980 -
Inventories ) 531 2,811 3,342 - 900,498
Prepaid expenses 18,677 - 18,677 - 364,522
Equity in joint venture - - - - - 12,685,371
Temporarity restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 46,286 1,180,160
Investments held with fiscal agents - - - - 337,001
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land, improvements, artwork, gravel roads,
intangibles and.construction in progress 7,602,766 8,361,074 15,863,840 265,480 622,301
Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation
Infrastructure 24,362,909 13,859,398 38,222,307 19,699 -
Buildings and improvements 23,264,660 24,838,054 48,102,714 - 10,909,841
Transmissions and distribution system - - - - 49,088 672
Equipment, machinery and furniture 11,789,245 4,425,993 16,215,238 - 54,028,737
Less: accumulated depreciation (41,958,106} {15,189,707) (57,147, 813) (2,626) (76,949,420)
TOTAL ASSETS $ 57,089,390 § 37819245 § 04908635 § 4361015 $ 61,892,874
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 23842 § 62740 $ 301,186 3 12485 § 4,441,136
Salaries payable 1,173,864 53,163 1,227,027 115 -
Notes payable - - - - -
Due to other governments 202,123 21,575 223,698 1,609 -
Due to primary government - - - - 451,998
Contracts payable 159,745 11,840 171,685 1,700 -
Customer deposits - - - -o- 296,744
Other accrued liabilities 74,853 - 74,853 - 151,432
Unearned revenue 1,225,575 - 1,225,575 - 22,797
Accrued interest payable 56,969 87,802 144,771 26,589 9,110
Compensated absences - 165,477 165,477 - 387,506
Long-term liabilities :
Due to component unit 345,199 - 345,198 - -
Compensated absences 275,339 84,668 360,007 - 976,182
OPEB liability 11,776,959 - 11,776,959 - 15,389,154
Due within one year 666,000 1,020,173 1,686,173 71,190 1,053,678
Due in more than one year 4,851,037 11,491,983 16,343,020 1,234,575 5,470,918
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 21,046,083 $ 12,999,521 $ 340458610 $ 1,348,263 $ 28,650,655
NET POSITION .
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 19,099,238 23,782,656 42 881,894 282,553 35,662,131
Resfricted for
Capital projects 3,458,144 - 3,458,144 110,601 -
Debt service 1,512,041 - 1,512,041 - 292,997 860,619
Other purposes 315,305 - 315,305 - -
Unrestricted 11,658,573 1,037,068 12,695,641 2,326,601 (3,280,531)
TOTAL NET POSITION 36,043,3H1 24,819,724 60,863,025 3,012,752 33,242,219
TOTAL LIABILITIES ANDNETPOSITION  § 57,089,380 $ 37819245 $ 94908635 $ 4,361,015 § 61,802,874
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Program Revenues

‘ Operating Capital Grants Interest
Charges for Grants and and on
Functions/Programs - ___ Expenses Services Contribufions Confributions  Loans Receivable
Primary Government
Governmental activities
General government 3 3438014 $ 3118098 % - % - 8 . -
Public safety 7,648,708 2,040,077 673,768 - -
Public works . 4,850,785 58,009 584,833 783,500 o -
Culture and recreation 3,038,500 344,862 23,788 18,276 -
Economic development : 16,473 - - - -
Transportation 297,724 58,060 240,043 135,893 -
interest on long-term debt 136,740 - - - -
Total Governmental Activities 19,427,944 2,812,617 1,522,432 937,669 -
Business-Type Activities
Garbage and refuse collection 2,454,079 2,665,487 - - ) -
Sewer operating and maintenance 2,812,981 3,054,235 - 466,665 -
Memorial building concessions 886 8407 . - - -
Total Business-Type Activities 5,267,948 5,728,129 - 466,665 -
Total Primary Government $ 24,695,890 $ 8540746 § 16522432 - § 1,404,334 $ -
Component Units
EDA $ 918,900 § - 3 - $ - 0% 46,073
PUC 20,981,446 27,893,677 - _ - -
Total Component Units $ 30,900,346 $ 27893677 & .- & - % 46,073

General Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes, levied for general purpeses
Property taxes, levied for specific purposes
Franchise faxes
Tax increment financing
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Special Item - Transfer of Raceway Operations from St. Louis County
Transfers -

Total General Revenues, Special items, and Transfers

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION - JANUARY 1
NET POSITION - DECEMBER 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
=17 -



Net {Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government Component Units
Governmental Business-Typse
Activities Aclivifies Total EDA PUC

(3,127,408) § - % (3127405)
(4,934,863) - (4,934,863)
(3,424,443) - (3,424,443)
(2,651,574) - (2,651,574)
(16,473) - (16,473)
136,272 - 136,272
{136,740) ) - - {136,740)
. (14,155,226 - (14,155,226}
- 211,408 211,408

- 707,919 767,919

- _ 7521 7,521

- 926 848 926,848

(14,155,226) 026,848 (13,228,378}

$ (872827) % -
- (2,087,769)

$  (872,827) § (2,087.769)

6,285,926 - 6,285,926 - -
2,521,531 - 2,521,531 120,114 -
150,360 . 150,360 - -

: - - 96,947 -
8,109,953 . 8,109,953 63 7,322
50,973 2,987 53,960 1,866 12,110
6,389 (50,765) (44,376) . -
194,272 - 194,272 - -
(35,222) - (35,222) 35,222 -
17,284,182 (47,778) 17,236,404 254,212 19,432
3,128,956 879,070 4,008,026 (618,615) (2,068,337)
32,914,345 23,940,654 56,854,999 3,831,367 35,310,556

$ 36043301 § 24819724 § 60863025 § 3,012,752 § 33,242,219

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF HIBEING, MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2014
' Nonmajor Total
Library Special Governmental Governmental
General Fund Revenue Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS . ' ’
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,332,208 $ 327,610 $ 15727858 $ 26,387,676
Investments 2,483,629 - - 2,483,629
Taxes receivable 413 141 8,875 29,757 449 773
Special assessments receivable - - 153,166 153,166
Accounts receivable 230,008 - 2,677 232,685
Interest receivable - 4,630 - - 4,630
Due from other funds. 1,698,123 - - 1,698,123
Due from other governments 417 375 - 75,390 492 765
Due from developers 197,526 - - . 197,526
Loans receivable - Co- - 54,865 54,885
Prepaid items and other assets 12,251 6,957 - 19,208
TOTAL ASSETS $ 15,788,891 3 341,442 $ 16,043,713 $ 32,174,046
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
' Accounts' payabie $ 223,742 $ 3,778 $ 10,906 $ . 238,427
Salaries payable 1,114,783 59,081 - 1,173,864
Due to other funds : - - - -
Due to other governments 193,922 4,754 3,447 202123
Contracts payable - - 159,745 159,745
Unearned revenue 3,554 17,964 1,204,057 1,225,575
Other accrued liabilities 74,851 - - 74,851
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,610,852 85,578 1,378,155 3,074,585
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue:
Property taxes 380,851 - - 380,851
Special assessments - - 153,166 153,166
Loans receivable - - 54,865 54,865
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 380,851 - 208,031 588,882
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 11,720 6,957 - 18,677
Restricted 47,721 248,907 4 970,185 5,266,813
Committed ) - - 8,335,357 8,335,357
Assigned 9,191,371 - 1,151,985 10,343,356
Unassigned . 4,546,376 - - 4 546 376
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 13,797,188 255,864 14,457 527 28,510,579
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
15,788,891 $ 341,442 $ 16,043,713 $ 32,174,046

FUND BALANCES 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

TOTAL FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 28,510,579

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 24,961,474

Some receivables are not available soon enough to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are unavailabie in the funds

Loans receivable 8,734
Delinquent property taxes ' 380,851
Deferred and delinquent special assessments 153,166

Interest payable on long-term debt is susceptible to full accrual on the
government-wide statements (56,969)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore not reported in the governmental funds (17,914,534)

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 36,043,301

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Nonmajor Total
Library Special Governmental Governmental
General Fund Revenue Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES .
Taxes $ 6,216,650 $ 585,733 $ 2,158,116 $ 8,960,499
Special assessments - - 76,0863 76,063
licenses and permits 192,326 - - 192,326
Intergovernmental 9,181,363 310 1,354,911 10,536,584
Charges for services 2,340,174 18,785 15,666 2,374,625
Fines 108,498 - - 108,498
Gifts and contributions 11,178 13,208 10,384 34,770
Investment income (loss) 41,831 248 8,895 50,972
Miscellaneous 77,189 - 1,175 78,364
TOTAL REVENUES 18,169,209 618,282 3,625,210 22,412,701
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 1,758,622 - - 1,758,622
Public safety 6,157,736 - - 6,157,736
Public works 2,851,711 - - 2,851,711
Culture and recreation 1,872,387 590,984 - 2,463,371
Economic development 16,473 - - 16,473
Transportiation 294,151 - 294,151
Miscellaneous 2,258,793 - - 2,258,793
Debt Service
Principal 24,707 540,000 564,707
Interest and other charges 14,128 - 103,102 117,230
Capital Cutlay '
General government - 118,143 118,143
Public safety - 482,697 482,697
Public works - - 1,519,021 1,519,021
Culture and recreation - - 256,453 256,453
Transportation 175,732 - 175,732
Miscellaneous - - 55,877 55,877
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 15,424,440 590,984 3,075,293 19,090,717
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 2,744,769 27,298 549 917 3,321,984
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ‘
Transfers in - 10,461 1,878,951 1,887,412
Transfers out {1,872,634) - (50,000) {1,922,634)
Debt issuance - - - -
Sale of capital assets _ 12,212 - 6,151 18,363
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING . :
SOURCES (USES) (1,860,422) 10,461 1,833,102 (16,859)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 884,347 37,759 2,383,019 3,305,125
FUND BALANCES - JANUARY 1 12,912,841 218,105 12,074,508 25,205,454
$ 13,797,188 $ 14,457,527 $ 28,510,579

FUND BALANCES - DECEMBER 31

$ 255 864

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds report cutlays for capital assets as expenditures; -
however, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
depreciated over their estimated useful life.

Expenditures for capital assets
Less current year depreciation
Transfer of raceway operations from St. Louis County

Net capital assets

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital
assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins, and disposals) is to decrease net assets.

Some revenues reported in the statement of activities do not provide
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenues in
governmental funds.

Change in deferred inflows of resources - delinquent property taxes
Change in deferred inflows of resources - special assessments
Change in deferred inflows of resources - loans receivable

Debt issued provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds; but the repayment reduced long-term liabilifies in
the statement of net paosition.

Debt issued
Principal repaid
Bond premium

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and these are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in accrued interest payable on long-term debt
Change in leng-term compensated absences
Change in long-term other postemployment benefits

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$ 3,305,125

1,977,078
(2,007 953)

194,272
163,397

(11.974)

(2,681)
(18,110)

(20,791)

564,707
1,001
- 565,708

(20,510)
(61,454)

(790,545)

(872,5608)

$ 3,128,956

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2014

Business-Type Acfivities - Enterprise Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
03

Garbage and Sewer Nonmajor
Refuse Operating and Enterprise
Collection Maintenance Fund-Memorial
Enterprise Enterprise Building
ASSETS Fund Fund Concessions Totals
CURRENT ASSETS ‘
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,869,843 3 358,204 $ 174,046 $ 2402,003
Special assessments receivable 25,071 63,354 - 88,425
Taxes receivable 2,200 - - 2,200
Accounts receivable 21,465 1,677 - 23,142
Due from other governments - 251,887 - 251,887
Due from componént units 200,929 251,069 - 451,998
Inventories 2,811 - - 2,811
Prepaid expenses - - - -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,122,319 - 926,191 174,046 3,222,556
NONCURRENT ASSETS
OTHER ASSETS
Capital assets
Land and improvements 297,689 126,030 - 423,719
Construction in progress - 7,937,365 - 7,937,355
Infrastructure - 13,859,398 - 13,859,398
Buildings and improvements 121,085 24,716,969 - 24,838,054
Equipment, machinery and furniture 3,018,275 1,382,358 24 360 4,425,993
Less accumulated depreciation {2,560,036) {12,605,311) (24,3600 (15,189,707)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 878,013 35,416,799 - 36,284,812
TOTAL ASSETS 3,000,332 36,342,880 174,046 39,517,368
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 50,447 12,293 - 62,740
Selaries payable 27,470 25,693 - 53,163
Accrued interest payable - 87,802 - 87,802
Due to other funds ’ - 1,698,123 - 1,698,123
Due to other governments 12,972 8,603 - 21,575
Other accrued expenses - - - -
Unearned revenue = - - -
Compensated absences 93,500 71,977 - 165,477
Contracts payable - 11,940 - 11,940
Bonds, notes and leases payable-current - 1,020,173 - 1,020,173
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 184,389 2,936,604 - 3,120,993
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Compensated absences 45,451 38,217 - 84,668
Bonds, notes and leases payable - 11,491,983 - 11,491,983
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 45,451 11,531,200 - 11,578,651
TOTAL LIABILITIES 229,840 14,467,804 - 14,697 644
NET POSITION
Invested in Capital assets, net of related debt 878,013 22,004,643 - 23,782,656 -
Unrestricted 1,882,479 {1,029,457) 174,046 1,037,068
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 2770492 $ 21,875,186 3 174,046 $ 24,819,724




CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended December 31, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Sewer connect fees
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services
Contractual services
Administration
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Cther supplies and expenses
Insurance claims and expenses
Depreciation
Miscellaneous

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME -

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Miscellaneous revenue {expense)
impairment loss on capital assets
Sale of capital assets
Operating grants
Interest expense
Transfer from primary government

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)

INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL GRANTS

CAPITAL GRANTS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

TOTAL NET POSITION - JANUARY 1
TOTAL NET POSITION - DECEMBER 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Garbage and Sewer Nonmajor
Refuse Operating and Enterprise
Collection Maintenance Fund-Memarial
Enterprise Enterprise Buiiding :
Fund Fund Concessions Tofals
$ 2663856 § 3041376 8 8407 § 5713639
- 10,497 - 10,497
1,631 2,362 - 3,993
2,665,487 3,054,235 8,407 5,728,129
856,921 812,617 - 1,669,538
999,458 101,475 - 1,100,933
438 - - 438
24,284 254 664 - 278,948
87,735 43,374 17 131,226
132,586 254,830 272 387,688
60,514 50,441 - 110,955
286,744 1,042,373 - 1,329,117
5,398 18,105 497 24,001
2,454,079 2,577,879 §86 5,032,844
211,408 476,356 7,521 595,285
2,279 475 233 2,987
- (590) - {590)
- (50,765) - (50,765)
- (234,512) - (234,512)
2279 (285,392) 233 (282,880)
213,687 190,964 7.754 - 412,405
- 466,665 - 466,665
213,687 657,629 7,754 879,070
2,556,805 21,217,557 166,292 23,040,854
§ 2770492 § 2187518 § 174,046  § 24,819,724




CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Garbage and Sewer Nonmajor
Refuse Cperating and Enterprise
Collection Maintenance  Fund-Memorial
Enterprise Enterprise Building
Fund Fund Concessions Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 2,640,833 $ 3037568 § 8,407 $ 5,686,808
Cash paid to suppliers (1,579,324) (972,3566) {389) (2,552,079)
Cash paid to employees ) (547,018) {529,021) - (1,076,039)
NET CASH PROVIDED {(USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 514,491 1,536,181 8,018 2,058,690
CASH FLOWS FRON NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Miscellaneous (payment) coliection - {590) - (590}
Interfund financing payments - (148,192) - (148,192)
Transfer from primary govermment - - - -
Prior year cash deficit advances - - - -
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES - {148,782) - (148,782)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase or construction of capital assets (202,815) (1,290,654) - (1,493,469)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 66,043 - - 66,043
Advances on notes payable - 591,937 - 581,937
Principal paid on long-term debt - (1,023,647) - (1,023,647}
(nterest paid on long-term debt - (235,310) - (235,310)
[ssuance costs paid on long-term debt - - - -
Capital grants and contributions - 511,097 - 511,097
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (202,815} (1,380,534} - (1,583,349)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments 2,279 475 233 2,987
* NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND :
CASH EQUIVALENTS 313,955 7,340 8,251 329,546
'CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1 1,655,888 350,864 168,795 2,072,547
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 $ 1,869,843 § 358204 § 174,046 § 2,402,083

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS)

‘Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED} BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by cperating activities
DCepreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Special assessments receivable
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Due from component unit
Inventeries
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Salaries payable
Other accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Compensated absences - current
Due to other governments
Compensated absences - long-term

NET CASH PROVIDED {USED} BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Garbage and Sewer Nonmajor
Refuse Operating and Enterprise
Collectiori Maintenance  Fund-Memorial
Enterprise Enterprise Building
Fund Fund Concessions Totals
$ 211,408 $ 476356 & 7,521 $ 695285
286,744 1,042,373 - 1,329,117
1,955 28,202 - 30,157
(1,581) - - {1,581)
{20,998} (1,002) - (22,000)
(4,545) (42,570} - (47,115}
293 - - 293
- - 497 497
15,552 1,627 - 17,179
5,467 4,871 - 10,338
{15,439) 7,787 - (7,652)
515 (1,297) - {(782)
35,120 19,834 - 54,954
§ 514,491 $ 1,536,181 3 8,018 $ 2,058,690
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NCTE

1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Hibbing (the City) was incorporated on August 15, 1893, The City operates as a statutory city
under the standard plan. Under the standard plan, voters elect a mayor, clerk-treasurer, and five
councilors. Pursuant to statutory authorization, the City has combined the duties of treasurer and clerk
into one position.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America {generaily accepted accounting principles) as applied to
governmental units by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is a
summary of significant accounting policies. '

A. Financial Reporting Entity

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the reporting entity
include (1) the City, (2) organizations for which the City is financially accountable and (3) other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that
exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Based
on the application of these criteria, the following component units are included within the City's reporting
entity; '

Blended Componerit Units

Blended component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria described
above and whose governing body is the same or substantially the same as the City Council or the
component unit provides services entirely to the City. These component units' funds are blended into
those of the City's by appropriate activity type to compose the primary government presentation.

Currently the City has no blended component units.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely preéented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria
described above, but do not meet the criteria for blending.

The component units that are discretely presented are as follows:

Component Unit Brief Description/Inclusion Criteria
Hibhking Economic Created by the City to assume primary
Development Authority responsibility for development activities
(EDA) ‘ within the City.

Hibbing Public Created to provide water, electric power,
Utilities Commission natural gas and steam services to the City.
(PUC)

EDA does not prepare separate financial statements. Compiete financial statements of the PUC may be
obtained from Hibbing Public Utilities Commission, 19th Street and East 6th Avenue, Hibbing, Minnesota
55748. .
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE

1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its component units.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by the given function or
segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of the particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid
financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements are presented for
governmental and proprietary activities. These statements present each major fund as a separate column
on the fund financial statement; all non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

The description of the funds included in this report are as follows:

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those funds through which most govemmental functions typically are financed.
The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balance of current financial
resources. The City has presented the following governmental funds.

Major Governmental Funds:
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and s used to account for all financial
resources relating to the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Library Special Revenue Fund is used to account for all financial resources refating to the public
library.

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific resources {other than major
capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds are used fo account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources used for the acquisition or construction
of major capital assets (other than those financed by proprietary funds).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE

1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the acerual
basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial position, and
cash flow. All assets and liabilities are included on the Statement of Net Position. The City has presented
the following proprietary funds:

Major Proprietary Funds: ,

The Garbage and Refuse Collection Enterprise Fund is used to account for revenues generated from the
charges for refuse removal and recycling services provided to the residential and commercial users of the
City. .

The Sewer Operating and Maintenance Enterprise Fund is used to account for revenues generated from

the charges for wastewater treatment services provided to the residential and commercial users of the
City.

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds:

The Memorial Building Concessions Enterprise Fund is .used to account for operation of the Memorial

Building concessions.
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and
expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting
relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The economic
resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) are
included on the statement of net position and the operating statements present increases (revenues) and
decreases (expenses) in net total position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incurred. Property taxes
are generally recognized as revenues in the fiscal year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items
are recognized when all requirements imposed by the provider have been met. ‘

Depreciation expense can be specifically identified by program and is included in the direct expenses of
each program. Interest on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on
the Statement of Activities. Generally, the effect of material interfund activity has been removed from the
government-wide financial statements. '
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE

1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both
"measurable and available™). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and
“available" means collectible within the current period or scon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. The City considers property taxes as available if they are collected within
60 days after year end. Grant revenue is recorded in the year in which the related expenditure is made.
Other revenue is considered available if collected within one year. Expenditures are generally recorded
when a liability is incurred. However, expenditures are recorded as prepaid for approved disbursements
incurred in advance of the year in which the item or service is to be used and debt service expenditures,
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only
when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and sc have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is

" considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are

considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City's enterprise funds are charges to customers. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the
cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand,
demand deposits and short-term investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less.

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Fund Balahces

1) Cash balances for all funds of the City are maintained on a combined basis and invested to the extent
possible, in allowable short-ferm investments. All investments are stated at fair value.

2) The General Fund reports accounts receivable net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. The
allowance amount is based on actual accounts.

3) The City had no significant inventories in the General Fund and records supplies and materials as
expenditures when purchased. Enterprise Funds’ inventories are valued at cost, on a first-in, first-out
{FIFO) basis, and the cost of these inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather
than when purchased. The PUC Component Unit's inventories consist of parts, which are valued at
weighted average cost and fuel and bulk supplies, which are valued at cost, on a first-in, first-out
(FIFQ) basis. : '

4) Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

5) Restricted assets are cash and cash eguivalents whose use is limited by legal requirements such as a
bond indenture. Restricted assets are reported only in the government-wide financial statements.
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NOTE

1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

6)

7

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances”.

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in the results of
operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds.

Capital assets, which include land, artwork, intangible-easements, buildings, improvements,
equipment, machinery, furniture, construction in progress, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewaiks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial
statements. ‘

Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost, or estimated historical cost, for assets where actual
historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. The City mainfains a threshold level of $5,000 or more for
capitalizing all capital assets. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs, such as annual City
paving costs from state aid maintenance projects, that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives, are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. When
assets are no longer needed by the City, such assets are either disposed of, if it is determined there is
ne value, or sold for an immaterial amount. Useful lives vary from 20 to 40 years for improvements
and buildings, 20 to 40 years for infrastructure, and 5 to 10 years for machinery, equipment and.
vehicles. Capital assets not being depreciated include land, ariwork, intangible-easements,
construction in progress, and gravel roads.

Effective January 1, 2010, the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Pronouncement 51 (GASB 51), "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets."
Governments, such as the City, may possess many different types of assets that may be considered
intangible assets, including easements, water rights, timber rights, purchased plant capacity, patents,
trademarks, and computer software (purchased or intemally written). GASB 51 requires that all
intangible assets be classified as capital assets (except for a few minor exclusions). Accordingly,
existing authoritative guidance related to the accounting and financial reporting for capital assets will
be applied to intangible assets, as applicable.

Upon adoption, the City evaluated the permanent right of ways and easements acquired or obtained
by the City since June 30, 1980, and determined such intangibles to be indefinite lived in nature. No
other material intangibles were identified. The City did not elect to retroactively apply GASB 51 to
these historical indefinite lived assets, but in accordance with GASB 51 is capitalizing intangibles
acquired, obtained or created after January 1, 2010, that exceeds the City's capitalization threshold of
$5,000.
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NOTE

1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

8)

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and fund financial statements will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) untit that time. '

In addition fo liabilities, the statement of financial position and fund financial statements will

‘sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial

statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources {revenue) until that time. The City has four types of
items, which arise only under the modified accrual basis of accounting that qualify for reporting in this
category. Accordingly, the items are reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet as
unavailable revenue. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from three sources:
property taxes, special assessments, and loans receivable. These amounts are deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become availabie.

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund type financial statements, long-term
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and _
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs, whether
or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as weil as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuance are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
Payment of principal and interest along with severance pay and post-employment benefits, are
recognized as expenditures when paid.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

10} In the fund financial statements, fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the
extent to which the City is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources reported
in governmental funds. These classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable - consists of amounts that cannot be spent because it is not in spendable form,
such as prepaid items.

Restricted - consists of amounts related to externally imposed constraints established by
creditors, grantors or contributors; or constraints by state statutory provisions.

. Committed - consists of amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally
imposed by formal action (resolution) of the City Council. Those committed amounts cannot
be used for any other purpose unless City Council removes or changes the specified use b

- taking the same type of action it employed to previously commit those amounts. '

Assigned - consists of amounts intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do

not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In governmental funds other
than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not
restricted or committed. In the general fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses
established by the governing body itself or by an official to which the governing body delegates
the authority. Pursuant to City Council's adoption of the Fund Balance Policy, the City's Finance
Director and City Clerk are authorized to establish assignments of fund balance.

Unassigned - is the residuai classification for the general fund and also reflects negative
residual amounts in other funds.

The City uses restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balances
are available. Additionally, the City would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned
amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.

The City Council has formally adopted a fund balance policy for the General Fund. The City's policy
is to maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance of not less then 50-65% of budgeted operating
expenditures for cash-flow requireménts and contingency needs because major revenues, including
property taxes and other government aids are received in the second half of the. City's fiscal year.

11} Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities in the govemment-wide financial
statements. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt consist of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or
acquire the capital assets. Net position is reported as restricted in the government-wide financial
statement when there are limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Revenues and Expenditures

1} Property Taxes

2)

3}

4)

5

The property tax calendar in Minnesota follows the calendar year. Property tax levies are certified to
the county auditor in December of each year for collection from taxpayers in May and October of the
following calendar year. In Minnesota, counties act as collection agents for all property taxes. The
county spreads all levies over taxable property. Property taxes become a lien on the property the
following January 1. The county generally remits taxes to the City at periodic intervals as they are
collected. A portion of property taxes levied is paid by the State of Minnesota through various tax
credits, which are included in revenue fram state sources (intergovernmentai) in the financial
statements.

Revenues are accrued and recognized in the government-wide financial statements in the current
period. In the fund financial statements, taxes that remain unpaid at December 31 are classifisd as
delinguent taxes and offset by a deferred inflow of resources in the governmental fund financial
statements.

Special Assessments

Special assessments are levied against the benefited properties for the assessable costs of special
assessment improvement projects in accordance with state statutes. The City usually adopts the
assessment rolls when the individual projects are complete or substantially complete. The
assessments are collectible over a period of five to twenty years, depending on the type of
assessment. Annual instaliments (including interest) for special assessments are collected by the
County in the same manner as property taxes. Property owners are allowed to prepay total future
installments without interest or prepayment penalties to the City. '

The City recognized special assessment revenue in the government-wide financial statements when
the assessment rolls are levied. In the fund financial statements, the City recognizes special
assessment revenue when it becomes both measurable and available. Current assessments, which
remain unpaid at December 31, are classified as delinquent receivables and, together with deferred
assessments, are offset by a deferred inflow of resources in the fund financial statements.

Grant Revenue . )

The City, a recipient of grant revenues, recognizes revenues (net of estimated uncollectible amounts,
if any), when all applicable eligibility requirements are met. Resources transmitted to the City before
the eligibility requirements are met are reported as unearned revenues. Some grants and
contributions consist of capital assets or resources that are restricted for capital purposes - to
purchase, construct, or renovate capital assets associated with a specific program. These are
reported separately from grants and contributions that may be used either for operating expenses or
for capital expenditures of the program at the discretion of the City.

Accrued Absences

City employees earn vacation and sick leave based on years of service and union and employment
contracts. Limited vacation time may be carried over annually. A liability for unused vacation is
recognized in the government-wide and fund financial statements. A percentage of accumulated
unused sick leave will be paid as severance pay upon retirement and is accrued in the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Other Postemployment Benefits
As provided in union and employment contracts, qualified employees meeting minimum age and

length of service requirements may be eligible for certain other postemployment benefits directly from

the City (see Note 15).
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NOTE

1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continue_d)

G. Governmental accounting standards implemented in 2014 and Standards to be implemented in
in 2015

Implemented in 2014:

In January 2014, GASB issued Stfatement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of
Government Operations (GASB 69). GASB 69 establishes three types of government combinations;
government mergers, government acquisitions, and transfers of operations. GASE 69 establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals of
government operations. it requires disclosures to be made about government operations to enable
financial statement users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of those transactions. GASB 69 was
effective for the City of Hibbing as of January 1, 2014.

In.March 2014, the City entered into a Purchase Agreement with St. Louis County to acquire the real
estate and improvements referred to as the Hibbing Raceway. In consideration of agreeing to acquire the
Raceway and other surrounding parcels from St. Louis County, the City received $250,000 in funds that
were restricted to be used to continue the initiative of economic development plan for the Hibbing
Raceway. The City concluded that this transaction was a transfer of operation from St. Louis County in
2014. In accordance with GASB 69, the City has recognized the net fund balance acquired of $194,272
as a special item in the Statement of Activities. A new Nonmajor Governmental Capital Projects Fund
was added in 2014 to account for the activities of the Raceway.

In April 2013, GASB issued Staterment No. 70 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Financial Guarantees (GASB 70}). This statement addresses the reporting and disclosure of
nonexchange transactions such as when a government extends financial guarantees for the obligations of
another entity without directly receiving equal or approximately equal value in exchange. If and when
qualitative factors and historical data indicate that it is more likely than not that the government will be
required to make a payment on the guarantee, the government will recognize a liability for that obligation.
GASB 70 was effective for the City of Hibbing as of January 1, 2014. The City evaluated this statement
and concluded that it was not likely that a liability needed to be recorded as of December 31, 2014,
Disclosure of the City's financial guarantees for the discretely presented component units - EDA and PUC
are included in Note 7, Long-Term Debt. '

To be implemented in 2015:

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions;, An
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 (GASB 68). GASB Statement No. 68 replaces the requirements
of Statement No. 27, Accouniing for Pensions by Stafe and Local Governmental Employers and
Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to governments that provide pensions through
pension plans administered as frusts or similar arrangements that meet certain criteria. GASB 68 requires
governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pension
benefits as a liability for the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual
costs of pension benefits. This statement will become effective for the City in calendar year 2015. The
City has not yet determined the financial statement impact of adopting this new standard.

In November 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date: An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, which addresses an
issue regarding application of the transition provisions of GASB 68. The statement requires that, in the
year of implementation of GASB 68, a government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources
for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net
pension liability. This statement will become effective for the City in calendar year 2015.
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NOTE 2

NOTE 3

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Fund and Net Position Deficits

The following funds of the City and the Hibbing Economic Development Authority, a discretely presented
component unit, had a deficit fund balance or net position at December 31, 2014:

Primary Government

Sewer Operating and Maintenance Enterprise

Fund - unrestricted net position

($1,029,457)

This deficit relates to large overruns that occurred in the past on a storm sewer renovation project that has and
will be funded by increased sewer charges.

ECA Component Unit -

Storefront Renovaticn Capital Project Fund

($170,529)

It is anticipated that the deficit will be eliminated as existing loans are repaid in future years.

EDA'COmponent Unit
Tax Increment District XI

($2,066)

It is anticipated that the deficit will be eliminated by revenue over expenditures in future years.

EDA Component Unit

Tax Increment Disfrict X1l Debt Service Fund

($500)

It is anticipated that the deficit will be eliminated by revenue over expenditures in future years.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The City's funds are combined (pooled) and ihvested to the extent available in various investments authorized by
Minnesota statutes. This pool of the City functions essentially as a demand account for all participating funds.
Each fund's porticn of this pool is displayed on the financial statements as "cash and cash equivalents" and
"restricted cash and cash-equivalents". Several funds and the compenent unif hold cash and investments
separate from the cash and investment pool.

"Cash and cash equivalents", "restricted cash and cash equivalents", and investments recorded are comprised

of:

Cash and cash equivalents
Petty cash
Deposits

Total cash and cash equivalents

Temporarily restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments
Other

Total investment

Total

Primary Component Units
Government EDA PUC Total

$ 1,571 $ - % - 8 1,571
28,788,198 2,165,501 - 30,953,699
28,789,769 2,165,501 - 30,955,270
- 46,286 1,180,160 1,226,446
2,483,629 - 337,001 2,820,630
2,483,629 - 337,001 2,820,630
$ 31,273,398 $ 2,211,787 § 1,517,161 $ 35002346
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NOTE 3

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Deposits
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the
City will not be able to recover its deposits. The City's formal deposit palicy for custodiai credit risk requires
deposits to be insured by FDIC insurance or collateralized.

The City maintains deposits at financial institutions authorized by the City Council. Minnesota siatutes reguire
that all City deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond or coliateral. The market value of collateral pledged
must equal 110 percent of the deposits not covered by insurance or bonds. State statutes authorize the types of
securities which may be pledged as collateral and require that those securities.be held in safekeeping by the City
or in a financial institution other than that furishing the collateral. At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's
deposits was $33,485,185; the bank balance was $34,113,461. At December 31, 2014, the carrying amount of
Hibking Public Utility Commission’s deposits was $1,172,160 and the bank balance was $1 ,168,572. At year
end, the City's bank balances were entirely insured, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution's agent in the City's name as required by Minnesota Statute §118A.03. At year end, the Hibbing Public
Utility Commission's bank balances were fully covered by depository insurance or by coilateral held in the
Commission's name by the pledging financial institution's correspondent bank.

Investments

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

For the investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will
net be able to recover the value of its investments or securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The City's formal investment policy requires brokers to have Securities Investor Protector Insurance (SIPC) and

excess SIPC coverage. At year end the City had $2,483,629 held by a broker-dealer.

Credit Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk

The City has a formal investment policy for credit risk or concentration of credit risk. State statutes authorize the
City to invest in qualified repurchase agreernents, obligations of the U.S. government, obligations of the State of

. Minnesota or its municipalities, shares of certain investment companies, banker's acceptance netes, commercial

paper and guaranteed investment contracts. The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any
one issuer.

As of December 31, 2014 , the City had the following investments:

Fair Value Rating
Primary Government

Minnesota Municipal Money

Market (4M) Fund $ 1,229  Not rated
Wells Fargo Advantage

Treasury Money Market 760,000  Not rated
Certificates of Deposit ) 974,938  Notrated
Government Bonds

FNMA/FHILMC 767,462  Moody AAA

Total Fair Value _ $ 2483620
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NOTE 3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4

The City utilizes the Minnesota Municipal Money Market (4M) Fund which is an external investment pool not registered with the Securities
Exchange Commission (SEC) that follows the same regulatory rules of the SEC under rule-2a7. The fair value of the position in the pool is the
same as the value of the pool shares. The pool is not rated.

inferest Rate Risk

interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of investments will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The City's formal
investment policy structures the investment portfolio so that maturing investments meet the City's cash requirements for ongoing operations.

As of December 31, 2014, the Public Utilities Commission did not hald any forms of investments subject to GASB 40 risk disclosures.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2014, was as follows:

Beginning Reclass- Operations Ending
Balance Increases Decreases ification Transfer in _Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated: .
Land and improvements % 1651090 § - % - § - $102000 $ 1,753,990
intangible - easements 25,600 - - - - 25,600
Artwork 1,819,350 - - - - 1,819,350
Gravel roads 2,909,500 - - - - 2,909,500
Construction in progress 1,635,910 1,170,084 (1,811,648) - - 994 326
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 8,042,350 1,170,064 (1,811,648) - 102,000 7,502,766
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 23,852,253 510,656 - - - 24,362 909
Buildings and improvements 21,796,827 - 1,262,942 - - 204,891 23,264,660
Equipment, machinery, and furniture 11,659,176 850,724 (714,993) (5,662) - 11,789,245
Total capital assets, being depreciated ‘57,308,256 2,624,322 (714,993} (5,662) 204,891 59416,814
Less accumuléted depreciation for:
Infrastructure (17,408,288) (775,976) - - - (18,184,264)
.Buildings and improvements (14,558,177) (502,336} - {112,619 - (15,171,132)
Equipment, machinery, and furniture (8,576,089) (729,640} 703,019 C - - (8,602,710)
Total accumulated depreciation (40,546,554) (2,007,852} 703,019 (112,619} . - (41,958,1086)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 16 767,702 616,370 (11,974) (118,281) 204,891 17,458 708
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 24,810,052 $ 1786434  $(1823622) $(118,281) $ 306,851 $ 24,961,474
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NOTE 4 CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Beginning Reclass- Ending
Balance Increases ‘Decreases ification Balance
Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated: : .
Land and improvements 3 423719 $ - 8 - % - % 423,719
Construction in progress 7,373,618 563,737 - - 7,937,355
Total Capital assets, not being depreciated 7,797,337 563,737 - - 8,361,074
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 13,607,077 252,321 - - 13,859,398
Buildings and improvements 25,048,635 J11,911 - (222,492) 24,838,054
Equipment, machinery, and furniture 3,925,285 500,698 (143,122} 143,122 4,425,983
Total capital assets, being depreciated 42,581,007 764,930 {143,122) (79,370) 43,123,445
Less accumulated depreciation for: -
Infrastructure _ (973,215) {339,871) - - (1,313,086)
Buildings and improvements {9,969,304) (571,207) 105,684 - (10,434,917)
Equipment, machinery, and furniture (3,023,665) {418,039) 143,122 (143,122) (3,441,704)
Total accumulated depreciation (13,966,274) (1,328,117} 248,808 (143,122} {15,189,707)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 28,614,733 (564,187) 105,684 (222,492) 27,933,738
Business-type activities. capital assets, net 3 36,412,070 $ (450) % 105684 § (222492) § 36,294,812

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities

General government $ 274,792
Public safety - 368,782
Public works 1,098,216
Culture and recreation 262,590
Ecenomic development -
Transportation 3,573
Total depreciation expense-
governmental activities $ 2,007,953
Business-type activities
Garbage and refuse collection $ - 286,744
Sewer operating and maintenance 1,042,373
" Total depreciation expense-

business-type activities $ 1,329,117
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NOTE 4  CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Activity for the Hibbing Economic Development Authority for the year ended December 31, 2014, was as follows:

Discretely presented component units -
- Beginning Reclass- Ending

Balance Increases Decreases ification Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated: .
Land and improvements . $ 258600 % - % - § - % 258,600
Construction in progress ' - 6,880 - - 8,880
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 258,600 6,880 - - 285,480

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure : 19,699 - - - -19,698
Buildings and improvements - :
Equipment, machinery, and furniture ) - - - - -

Total capital assets, being depreciated 19,689 - ) - ) - 19,699

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements

Equipment, machinery, and furniture ' {1,969} (657) - - {2 ,626)
Total accumulated depreciation {1,969} {657} - - {2,626)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 17,730 (657) ‘ - - 17,073
Hibbing Economic Development . '
Authority capital assets, net $ 276,330 3 6223 % - 3 - % 282,653
Activity for the Hibbing Public Utilities Commission for the.year ended December 31, 2014, was as follows:
Beginning Reclass- Ending
Balance Increases Decreases ification Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated: .
Construction in progress $ 1729818 § (1.107518) § - 3 - 5 622,301
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,728,818 (1,107,518} - - 622,301
Capital assets, being depreciated: ' : :
Buildings and grounds 10,866,808 - 43,033 - - 10,908,841
Transmission and distribution system 48,685,703 413,969 - ’ - 49,099,672
Equipment, machinery, and furniture 52,462,185 1,817,555 (252,983) - 54,028,737
Total capital assets, being depreciated 112,014 676 2,274,557 (252,983) - 114,038,250
Less total accumulated depreciation (74,172,513) {2,982,392) 205,485 - (76,949,420)
Total Capital assets, being depreciated, net 37,842,163 (707,835) (47,498) - 37,086,830
Hibbing Public Utilifies Commission
capital assets, net $ 39671982 § (1,815353) & (47,498) % - § 3770913

NOTE 5 OPERATING LEASES

The City has a sublease agreement with St. Louis County for office facilities for its police department. The EDA has a lease agreement
with the Chisholm-Hibbing Airport Authority for land for the animal shelter. The City also has various lease agreements for office
related equipment. Total cost for these leases was $150,702 for the year ended December 31, 2014. The future payments for these
leases are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31, - Amount
2015 $ 119,844
2016 46,258
2017 29,659
2018 - 2028 108,369

$ 305,130
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NOTE 6

NOTE 7

LINE OF CREDIT

The PUC has entered into a line of credit agreement with its primary bank. The agreement establishes a maximum credit amount of
$1,000,000 and carries an interest rate of 0.5% above the Wall Street Journal prime rate. The agreement matures on November 1,
2015. As of December 31, 2014, no amounts had been drawn down on the line.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Primary Government - Governmental Activities
Recent debt issuance:

In 2013, the City issued $3,585,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013A. The proceeds of the Bonds were used as foilows:
$2,890,000 to finance road construction project costs and $695,000 to finance purchase of equipment. The Bonds are payable from
annual municipal state aid allotments and from ad vaiorem taxes.

Primary Government - Business-Type Activities
Recent debt issuance:

In 2012, the City issued a $4,912,830 General Obligation Sewer Revenue Note for a wastewater treaiment ptant improvement project.
Advances were made on this loan as the City submitted cost reimbursement requests to the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority. As
of December 31, 2014, the City had advanced $4,446,823 against the approved loan of $4,912 830. During 2013 and 2014, the City
made principal payments totaling $443,830. The City has made additional draws on this loan during 2015 for the project. The entire
loan amount of $4,912,830 less the 2013 and 2014 principal payments is reflected in the projected principal payments.

Primary Government
Relationship on debt issued by discretely presented component unit - EDA:

The City also issues long-term leases and certificates of indebtedness for the purchase of major equipment and other items. These
leases and certificates are cansidered obligafions of the primary government and are being repaid as part of each year's budgsted
expenditures. Included in the lease purchase obligations are lease agreements between the City and the EDA-Component Unit for
repayment of debt issued by the EDA-Component Unit for construction of an animal shelter. The amount of the obligation related to
the EDA-Component Unit at December 31, 2014 was $345,198.

The other EDA bonds payable at December 31, 2014 with principal dutstanding of $105,000, $35,000 and $830,000 are all General
Obligation Tax Increment Bonds issued by the EDA with the pledge of repaymant from tax increments to be received on the respective
Tax Increment Financing Districts. If the net tax increments captured are insufficient to pay principal and interest due on the bonds, the
deficiency would become a liability of the City with payment obligated from the general taxing authority of the City.

Relationship on debt issued by discretely presented component unit - PUC:

In March 2015, the City authorized the Public Utilities Commission's issuance of a Utility Net Revenue Note in the amount of
$3,426,000, payable to Dougherty Funding LLC. The proceeds of the note will fund a one year reserve account for principal and
interest and will be used by the Public Utilities Commission to make upgrades to the Public Utilities systems. Advances will be made
on this loan as the Public Utilities Commission submits draw requests to Dougherty Funding LLC to pay project costs. The nat
revenues of the Public Utilities Commission are pledged first to repay the Note and if the Public Utilities Commission's net revenues are

~ not sufficient to pay the principal and interest in a given year, then the City's general taxing authority is liable to replenish the one year

reserve account.
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NOTE 7

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Relationship on debt issued by discretely presented component - PUC (continued):

In 2010, the City authorized the issuance of a Taxable General Obligation Drinking Water Revenue Note in the amount of $948,350,
payable to the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority. Advances were made on this loan as the Public Utilities Commission submitted
cost reimbursements to the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority. As of December 31, 2014, the Public Utilities Commission's nates
payable balance on this loan was $531,000. The net revenues of the Public Utilities municipal water system are pledged first to repay
the Note and second are ad valorem taxes levied by the City in the event proceeds of the net revenue are insufficient to pay principal
and interest when due. As of December 31, 2014, the City has not recorded any amounts in their financial statements in regards to this
contingent liability and the note payable balance of $531,000 is included in the financial statements of the Public Utilities Commission.

In 2001, the City authorized the issuance of a Taxable General Obligation Drinking Water Revenue note in the amount of $1,275,000,
payable to the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority. Advances were made on this loan as the Public Utilities Commission submitted
cost reimbursements fo the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority. As of December 31, 2014, the Public Utilities Commission's notes
payable balance on this loan was $551,000. The net revenues of the Public Utilities municipal water system are pledged first to repay
the Note and second are ad valorem taxes levied by the City in the event proceeds of the net revenue are insufficient to pay principal
and interest when due. As of December 31, 2014, the City has not recorded any amounts in their financial statements in regards to this
contingent liability and the note pavable balance of $551,000 is included in the financial statements of the Public Utiliies Commissian.

Components of long-term liabilities are as follows: _
Issue interest Qriginal Final Principal

Date Rates Issue Maturity Outstanding
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds
2007 A Equipment 121142007 4.00% $ 440,000 201/2017 $ 60,000
Series 20098 5M/2009 0.75-3.50% $- 1,370,000 2/1/2019 370,000
Serigs 2012A 2172012 0.40-1.70% $ 1,890,000 2112017 1,380,000
Series 2013A 11/1/2013 2.00-3.50% $ 3,585,000 21112029 3,585,000
Plus: Unamortized Bond Premium : : 29,037
Total General obligation bonds _ 5,424,037
Certificates of indebtedness
Series 2005A 12/1/2005 4.68% $ 565,000 - 8/172015 30,000
Series 2006A 11/1/2006 4.21% $ 455,000 11/1/2016 63,000
Total Certificates of indebtedness 93,000
Lease purchase obligations 2/1/2009 1.75-4.40% $ 462500  2M/2024 345,189
Compensated absences payable . 275,339
OPEB fiability 11,776,958
Governmental Activities Long-term Liabilities $ 17,914,534
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NOTE 7

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Issue Interest Original Final Principal
Date Rates Issue Maturity Outsfanding
Business-Type Activity
General obligation revenue
2003 Sewer Notes 1/29/2003 1.74% $ 9,847,450 8/20/2022 $ 4,591,000
2007A Sewer Revenue Bonds 12/1/2007 4.00-4.10% $ 2,365,000 2{1/2028 1,840,000
2010 Sewer Revenue Note 11/30/2010 1.34% $ 1,728,575 8/20/2025 1,154,173
2012A General Obligation Bond 2172012 0.40-2.85% $ 1,010,000 2/1/2032 930,000
Less: Unamortized bond discount (6,010)
2012 Sewer Revenue Note 10/23/2012 1.00% $ 4,912830 8/20/2031 4,002,993
Compensated absences payable 84,668
Business-Type Activities Long-term Liabilities - 12,596,824
Total Primary Government Long-Term Liabilities 30,511,358
Discretely Presented Component Units
EDA
Bonds and notes payable
1997B General Obligation .
Tax Increment Bonds 8/1/1997 7.50% $ 320,000 2172017 105,000
1999A General Obligation
Tax Increment Bonds 10/1/1999 7.49% $ 165,000 2/1/2016 35,000
2009A Public Project
Revenue Bonds 5/7/2008 1.75-4.50% $ 462,500 21112024 345,199
2014A General Obligation
Tax Increment Bonds 2/1/2014 4.00-5.25% $ 830,000 2/1/2036 830,000
Less: Unamortized Bond
Discount (8,434)
Total EDA-Component Unit Long-Term Liabilities 1,305,765
PUC
Bonds, notes, and real estate morigage payable- 6,524,596
Compensated absences payable 976,182
OPERB liability 15,389,154
Total PUC-Component Unit Long-Term Liabilities 22,889,932
Total Reporting Entity $ 54,707,055
Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:
. Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
: Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Primary Government
Governmental Activities :
General obligation bonds payable - $ 5,875,000 - $ (480,000) $ 5,395,000 $ 605,000
Unamortized bond premiums 30,038 - (1,001) 29,037 -
Certificates of indebtedness 153,000 - (60,000) 93,000 61,000
Leases payable 369,908 - (24,707) 345,199 26,190
Compensated absences payable 213,885 72,405 (10,951) 275,339 -
OPEB liability 10,986,414 2,084,732 {1,294 187} 11,776 958 -
Governmental Activities- :
Long-Term Liabilities $ 17,628,243 2157137 $ (1,870,846) § 17814534 § 692,180
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NOTE 7 LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued)

Amounts
Beginning . Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Business-Type Activities
GO revenue notes payable $ 10040228 $ 581,937 (884,000) $ 9,748166 % 880,173
GO revenue bonds payable 2,910,000 - {140,000) 2,770,000 140,000
Unamortized bond discounts (6,363) - 353 (6,010) -
Compensated absences payable 88,261 10,027 (13,620} 84,668 -
Business-Type Activities-
Long-term Liabilities 13,032,127 601,964 {1,037,267) 12,596,824 1,020,173
Total Primary Government § 306860370 $ 2,759,101 3  (2,908113) $ 30,511,358 § - 1,712,363
Discretely Presented Component Units
EDA
Bonds payable : $ 554906 § 830,000 % 69,707) $ 1315199 & 71,190
" Unamortized bond discount - (8,654) 220 {9,434) -
. EDA-Component Unit
Long-term Liabilities $ 654,906 % 820,346  § (69487) $ 1305785 § . 71,160
PUC
Bonds, notes, and real
estate mortgage payable $§ 7293483 § - 8 (773,893) $ 6524596 $ 1,053,878
Compensated absences payable 1,013,745 - (37,563) 576,182 -
OPEB liability 14,308,347 1,880,319 (799,512) 15,389,154 -
PUC-Component Unit ]
Long-term Liabilities $ 22,620,581 $ 1880313 $ (1610988 $ 22880932 § 1,063678
Total § 53835857 § 5459766 $ (4,588,568) $ 54,707.055 § 2,837,231

Minimum annual principal and interest payments required to retire long-term liabiiities, excluding compensated absences payable and

OPEB liability are as follows:

Primary Government

Year Ending Government Activities Business-Type Achivitios Total
December 31 Principal interest Principal Interest Principal interest
2015 $ 692,190 % 133,080 $ 1020173 % 226676 $ 1712383 % 359,756
20186 694,761 119,277 1,043,000 212,709 1,737,761 331,986 -
2017 674,427 105,924 1,062,000 194,675 1,736,427 300,599
2018 . 591,192 95,746 1,081,000 176,164 1,672,192 271,910
2019 448,064 81,744 1,098,000 157,167 1,546,064 238,91
2020-2024 1,632,565 282,757 4,530,000 496,823 6,162,565 779,580
2025-2029 1,100,000 93,231 2,384,000 168,917 3,494,000 262,148
2030-2034 - - 756,000 16,705 ] 756,000 16,705
Total $ 5,833,198 3 911,759 $§ 12984173 § 1649836 §$ 18,817,372 $ 2561595

Component Units

Year Ending EDA PUC
December 31 Principal Inferest - Principal Interest
2015 3 71,190 $ 61734 § 1053678 § 149,381
2016 82,761 57,142 1,078,786 122,316
2017 69,427 52,613 1,108,127 94,252
2018 51,192 49,613 788,710 67,392
2019 53,064 47 575 632,177 54,040
2020-2024 357,565 197,797 1,723,338 142,390
2025-2029 225,000 132,413 155,000 6,984
2030-2034 275,000 71,196 - _ -
2035-2036 130,000 '~ 6,825 - -
Total $ 1,315,199 $ 676908 § 65398168 § 636,755
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NOTE 7

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Conduit Debt

The City entered into a joint powers agreement pursuant to Minnesocta Statute §471.58 with the City
of Buhl. The purpose.of the agreement was to help a Minnesota non-profit corporation refinance
projects for three facilities used to provide residential services to adults with developmental disabilities
in both cities by issuing revenue obligations pursuant to Minnesota Statute §469.152-.165. The City
of Buhl is the "“issuer”, and the City of Hibbing gave "host consent”. This agreement shall terminate

-upon the earlier of: defeasance of the obligations; final maturity and payment of the obligations; or

payment in full of the obligations prior to their final maturity.

The City entered into a joint powers agreement pursuant to Minnesota Statute §471.59 with the City of
Virginia. The purpose of the agreement was to help a Minnesota non-profit corporation refinance and
finance projects for health care facilities in both cities by issuing revenue obligations pursuant to
Minnesota Statute §469.152-.165. These obligations are not a debt of the City, as explained below.
This agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of: defeasance of the obligations; final maturity and.
payment of the obligations; or payment in full of the obligations prior to their final maturity.

The City issued a tax-exempt manufacturing facilities revenue note pursuant to Minnesota Statute
§469.152-.165.. The purpose of the note was to help two Minnesota non-profit corporations refinance
their manufacturing facilities located in the City of Hibbing and the City of Grand Rapids. This note is
not a debt to the City. The two non-profit corporations are obligated to repay the note directly to the
lender of the note as stated in a pledge agreement between the City of Hibbing and the lender. The
note will not constitute a charge, lien or encumbrance upon property of the City. This agreement shall
terminate upon the earlier of: defeasance of the obligaticons; final maturity and payment of the
obligations; or payment in full of the obligations prior the their final maturity.

The City has issued the financial arrangements and insiruments noted above to facilitate private-
sector entities in their refinancing projects as they were deemed to be in the public interest. These
bonds and notes are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from revenues derived
from the loan agreements. The City is not obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds or
notes, accordingly, they are not reported as a liabitity in the accompanying financial statements.

Since 1995, there are four issues outstanding. The aggregate amount payable at December 31,
2014, is $12,903,420. Records for revenue bonds or notes issued prior to 1995 are not available.
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'NOTE 8

INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY
The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2014, is as follows:
Due toffrom other funds/component units/primary government:
Due From Due To

Due From Component - DueTo Primary
Fund or Component Unit Other Funds Units Other Funds Government

Primary Government .
General Fund $ 1898123 § - -8 - 3 -
Enterprise Funds = - -

Garbage and Refuse - 200,929 -
Sewer Operating and Maintenance . - 251,069 1,608,123 -

Total Primary Government $ 1,698,123 $ 451,008 $ 1,698123 $ -

Component Units

Hibbing Economic Development Authority EDA -
General Fund 3 1,664 3 - $ -
Tax Increment Xl i - - 1,664 -
Economic Development Special 7
Revenue Fund 213,000 - - -
Storefront Rencvation Capital
Projects Funds - - 213,000 ' -

Subiotal HEDA 214,664 - 214,664 -

Hibbing Public Utilites Commission ~ - - 451,998

Total Component Units $§ 214664 $ - $ 214664 $ 451998

The interfund loan between the General Fund and the Sewer Operating and Maintenance Fund was needed to fund
large overruns that occurred in the past on a storm sewer renovation preject. :

Other balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures oceur, (2 transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between
funds are made.
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INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY (continued)
Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2014, consisted of the following:

Transfer To/From Other Funds/Component Units:

Fund or Compenent Unit Transfers In Transfers Out
Primary Government
General Fund $ - $ (1,872,634
Library 10,461 -
Capital Projects Funds
Permanent Improvement 388,000 {(50,000)
Privately Financed 50,000 -
Capital Equipment and Improvement 198,812 -
Mining Effects 411,139 -
Debt Service Funds _
Other Postemployment Benefits 829,000 ] -
Total Primary Government $ 1887412 $  (1,822634)
Component Units
Hibbing Economic Developrment Authority EDA
General Fund $ 109,034 % (3,535)
Tax Increment XI 3,535 -
Tax Increment Xl Debt Service Fund ) - (19,434}
Tax Increment Xl Capital Projects Fund 19,434 .
Central Range Public Works - (73,812)
Total Hibbing Economic Development Authority EDA - $ 132,003 $ (96,781)
Component Unit
Total Transfers - ‘ § 2019415 $  (2,019.415)

Transfers are used to: (1) eliminate deficit fund balances, (2) help fund operating losses or deficits, (3} establish new
funds, (4) provide funding in the OPEB debt service fund, and (5) provide matching funds for grant projects.
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NOTE 9 FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATION

Restricted Net Position

The amount reported as restricted net position on the Statement of Net Position is comprised of the following:

Primary Government

Library $ 255864
Confracted professional services - 11,720
Economic development -
Debt service 1,512,041
Capital projects 3,458,144
Gambling 10% contribution fund -
Police forfeiture fund _ 47,721
Total Restricted Net Position $ 5,285490

At December 31, 2014, a summary of the governmental fund balance classifications are as follows:

Library
Special Non-Major
General Revenue Governmental
Fund . Fund Fund "~ Total
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items $ 11720 $ 6957 § - 8 18,677
Total nonspendable $ 11,720 § 6957 8 - 8 18,677
Restricted for:
Debt service 3 - 3 - % 1,512,041 $ 1,512,041
Capital equipment and improvements - - 3,458,144 3,458,144
Library operations : - 248,907 - 248,807
Gambling 10% contribution fund - - - -
Police forfeiture fund 47 721 - - 47 721
Total restricted 3 47,721 $ 2485807 $ 4,970,185 $ 57266,813
Committed to: .
Housing incentive $ - 8 - 5 48572 % 48,572
Small Cities development - - 24,926 24,926
Economic development - - 84,806 84 806
OPEB obligation - - 5,701,341 5,701,341
Memorial Building - - 209,255 209,255
Capital equipment and improvements - - 2,266,457 2,266,457
Total committed B - $ - % 8,335357 $ 8,335,357
Assigned to: .
2015 budget $ 8,303,768 $ - 0% - § 8,303,768
Future capital projects ) _
funded from sale of assets 514,853 - - 514,853
Workers' compensation .
" premium adjustments 372,750 - - 372,750
Cther improvement projects - - 1,151,985 1,151,885
Total assigned _ $ 9191371  § - % 1,151,985 § 10,343,356
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NOTE

NOTE

10

1

12

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of oss related to torts; theft of, damage fo, and destruction of assets, errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Risk of loss associated property damage and with workers'
compensation claims are insured through participation in the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust. The League
of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust is a public entity risk pool currently operated as a common risk managerment and
insurance program for its members. The Gity pays an annual premium based on its annual payroli and an experience
modification factor for workers' compensation coverage. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage
from the previous year. There were no seftlements in excess of insurance coverage in 2014, 2013 and 2012.

The Hibbing Public Utilities Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Commission carries commercial
insurance. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from prior years and setflements have not exceeded
coverage in 2014, 2013 and 2012.

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICTS

The Hibbing Economic Development Authority is the administering authority for the following tax increment financing
districts: :

* Tax Increment Financing District No. Vit No. VIl No. Xl No. XII
Redevelopment project district established in: 1993 - 1969 2012
Economic development district established in: - : - - -
Qualified housing district established in: - 1993 ‘ - , -
Anticipated last tax increment year: 2019 2020 i 2025 2038
Original net tax capacity: $ 2,160 $ 472 $ 525 $ 12,660
Current net tax capacity: $ 49 586 3 8377 % 13,636 $ 12,660
Fiscal disparity deduction: $ - &8 - 8 3073 _§$ -
Captured net tax capacity retained by Authority:  $ 47 426 $ 7,905 $ 10,038 $ -
Total bonds issued ' .

Tax increment bonds $ 320,000 $ - % 165,000 $ 830,000
Tax increment note - - - -
Amount redeemed {215,000) - {130,000) -
Outstanding bonds at December 31, 2014 3 105,000 5 - % 35,000 $ 830,000

OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments
in March 2010, the City entered into an agreement for management of the City recycling center. The term of the

agreement is for six years and provides for an annual fee of $144,000 with an adjustment based upen increases in the
cost of living index. The agreement may be terminated upon specific events of default.
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NOTE 12

OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Library and Fire Hall Solar Panel Agreements

During 2012, the City entered into a Facility Lease Agreement, Energy Performance Guarantee, Power Purchase
Agreement, and Put and Call Agreement with a solar panel company for the installation of a solar energy
generation system (the System) at the City Library and Fire Hall. The Facility Lease Agreement and Power
Purchase Agreements have twenty year terms. The Facility Lease Agreement calls for the selar panel company to
lease roof spdce from the City for the installation and operation of the System and defines that the System
remains the property of the solar panel company. The Power Purchase Agreement defines the rate the City will
pay for future purchases of energy generated by the System. The Energy Performance Guarantee is related {o a
guarantee of aggregate net utility savings to the City over the first five years of the operation of the System. The
Put and Call Agreement defines future potential apportunities of the City or solar company in regards to ownership
of the System. Under this Put and Call Agreement, the solar pane! company has the right for a six month period
following the fifth year of operation of the System, to require the City to purchase the System from the solar panel
company in the amount of $3,500. Should this "put" option not be exercised by the solar panel company, the City
has a "call" option for a period of one year following the last day of the "put" period requiring the solar panel
company to sell the System to the City. The purchase price under the "call" provision is based on fair market
value as determined by a qualified appraiser selected by the City at such time.

Grants

The City participates in grant programs, which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor
agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the
grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectability of any related receivable at
December 31, 2014, may be impaired. In the opinion of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilities
relating to compliance with the rules and regulations governing the respactive grants; therefore, no provision has
been recorded in the accompanying financial statements for such contingencies.

Construction Projects

The City had nineteen cutstanding construction projects as of December 31, 2014. The projects are evidenced by
contractual commitments with contractors and engineers and include:
Commitments
Project ' Spent to Date Remaining

Capital Projects Funds
Capital Equipment and improvement

Wireless high speed internet [ 13,830 8 - 8,331
Memoriat Building Arena 136,108 4,346
Carey Lake Park 3,055 -
Permanent Improvement
Rainy Road Bridge 1,718 -
Koivu Road Bridge : 3,819 -
Dixon Bridge ] 4,388 -
31st Street © 122,188 5,475
Lindquist Road ) 315,457 14,214
Dillon Road . 97,714 4,346
Corey Tracts Road 129,341 5,801
Ansley Road (Marshview Addition) 153,963 -
N & S Salmi Road 2,750 -
City Paving Project 431,023 21,551
City Sidewalks Project 112,182 5,609

Total Capital Fund Project . 1,537,531 69,673

The project commitments are being funded by grants, foan proceeds and fund revenues.
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NOTE 12

NOTE 13

NOTE 14

OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Enterprise Fund
Sewer Operating and Maintenance Fund

Phase 8 Sewer Improvements 246,306 -
594 Brooklyn Sewer Improvements 80,632 . -
Hwy 169 West Utility Projects 183,070 2,037
Ansley (Marshview) Project 208,813 -
Mercury Project 7,218,534 -
Total Sewer Operating and ‘

Maintenance Fund 7,937,355 2,037

Total All Funds | $ 9,474,885 $ 71,710
JOINT VENTURES

Chisholm-Hibbing Airport Authority

The Chisholm-Hibbing Airport Authorlty was created by Minnesota Laws of 1994, Chapter 587, Article 11. The
Hibbing City Council approved this law as required on September 6, 19%4.

The Chisholm-Hibbing Airport Authority is governed by a six-member board appointed equally by each city. Ifthe
Authority is dissolved, the fair market vaiue of all real estate owned by the City of Hibbing prior ta the formation of
the Chisholm-Hibbing Joint Airport Commission in 1957, including impravernents on that real estate prior to that
time, must be credited to the City of Hibbing. : '

During 2014, there were no related party transactions betwsen the City and the Chisholm'-Hibbing Airport
Authority. Complete financial information can be obtained from the Chisholm-Hibbing Airport Authority, 11038
Highway 37, Hibbing, Minnesata 55746. :

RELATED ORGANIZATION

Housing and Redevelopment Autherity of Hibbing

The five-member governing body of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Hibbing is appointed by the
Mayor, with approval of the Council. The City is not financially responsible for the Authority,

The City has an agreement with the Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA) to seil a parcel of land at a fixed
price, at such time that the HRA is the recipient of a certain level of grant funding.

Aside from the land sale agreement, during 2014, there were no other related party transactions betwesn the City
and the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Hibbing.
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NOTE 15

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Primary Government

The City provides postretirement health and life insurance benefits to some retired employees as established by
contracts with bargaining units or other employment contracts. These contracts state the years of service and age
needed to qualify for these postretirement benefits. The contracts also establish the amount the City will contribute
towards the purchase of health insurance. Employer contributions are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Effective for 2008, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45, Accounting.
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions , for certain
postemployment heafth' care benefits and life insurance benefits provided by the City. The requirements of this
Statement are being implemented prospectively, with the actuarially accrued liability for benefits of $42,567,876 at
January 1, 2008, date of transition, amortized over 30 years. Accordingly, for financial reporting purposss, no liability
was reported for the postemployment health care benefits fiability at the date of transition.

Plan Description

Pursuant to the provisions of confracts with bargaining units or other employment contracts, former employees who
retire from the City and eligible dependents, may continue to participate in the City's plan for medical and life

.coverage. The City subsidizes the premium rates paid by the retirees by ailowing them to participate in the plan at

reduced or blended group (implicitly subsidized) premium rates for both active and retired employees. These rates
provide an implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an actuarial basis, their current and future claims are expected to
result in higher costs to the plan on average than those of active employees. Additionally, certain retirees receive
insurance coverage at a lower (explicitly subsidized) premium rate than active employees. The benefits provided
under this defined benefit plan are provided for life. Retirees are required to enroll in the Fec{eral Medicare program
for their primary coverage as soon as they are eligible.

Funding Policy

The City has not advance-funded or established a funding methodology, other than transferring funds to the Other
Postemployment Benefits Debt Service Fund. For 2014, 2013, and 2012, there were 218, 222, and 211, retirees
and eligible dependents, respectively, that received postemployment benefits. The City provided required
contributiens of $1,294,187, $1,172,130 and $1,434,672 for 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, toward the annual
QPEB cost, comprised of benefit payments made on behalf of retirees, and net of retiree contributions totaling
$283,861, $265,684 and $314,702 for 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Required contributions are based on
projected pay-as-you-go financing.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The following table shows the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the City's net OPEB obligation for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively:

2014 2013 2012
Normal cost (service cost for one year) $ 609,443 $ 591,692 5 772,524
Amortization of unfunded actuarial

accrued liability $ 1775522 3 1,774,989 $ 1,814,443
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation {Continued)

2014 2013 2012
Annual required contribution $ 2,384,965 $ 2,366,681 $ 2,686,967
Interest on net OPER abligation 329,592 301,522 292 755
Adjustment to annual required confribution (629,825) (560,380) {502,169)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) _ 2,084,732 2,107,823 2,477,553
Contribution toward the OPEB cost {1,294 187) (1,172,130) (1,434,672)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 790,545 935,693 1,042,881
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year 10,986,414 10,050,721 __ 9,007,840
Net OPEB Obligation, End of Year $ 11,776,959 $ 10,986,414 $ 10,050,721
Percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed 82.1% 55.6% 57.9%

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $30,818,8986,
$30,761,648 and $34,926,227, and the actuarial value of assets was zero for all three years. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active participating employees) was $8,086 793, $8,188,216 and $7,966,015 and the ratio of the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 381.1, 375.7 and 438.5 percent for 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment
and termination, mortality, and the healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Projections of benefits for financial
reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan provisions, as understood by the employer and participating
members, and include the type of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing
of benefit costs between the employer and participating members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and
the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The City's prior OPEB actuarial valuation was as of January 1, 2011, and the latest actuarial valuation was as of
January 1, 2013. Both valuations used the projected unit credit cost actuarial cost method to estimate both the
unfunded actuarial liability as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, and to estimate the City's 2014, 2013 and
2012 annual required contribution. This method was selected because it produced the best estimate of the OPEB
liability and annual cost. Because the OPEB liability is currently unfunded, the January 1, 2013 actuarial
assumptions include a 3.0 percent rate of return on invested assets, which is the City's long-term expectation of
investment returns under its investment policy. The January 1, 2013, actuarial assumptions include an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 9.5% for 2013, 6.59% for 2014, 5.2% for 2015 and ranging from 6.4% to 4.4% for years
2016 to 2083 and later. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized using the level dollar method.
The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2014, is 24 years.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {Continued)

Component Unit - Hibbing Public Utilities Commission

Plan Description

The Commission provides health care and dental insurance benefits for retired Commission employees.
Commission employees become eligible for such benefits upon retirement. During the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013, the Commission expended $548,632 and $538,017, respectively, for benefits for approximately 43
retirees in 2014 and 44 retirees in 2013.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Commission's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the annual required
contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal
cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30
years. The following table shows the component of the Commission's annual OPEB cost, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes in the Commission's net OPEB obligation:

2014 2013 2012
Annual required contribution _ $ 2233463 $ 3,348,639 $ 3,305,078
Interest on net OPEB obligation 465,021 386,977 321,913
Adjustment to annual required contribution (818,165) {680,944) (539,100}
Annual OPEB cost 1,880,319 3,064,672 3,087,891
Contribution during the year (799,512} (971,014) (778,2086)
Increase in net OPEB obligation ‘ 1,080,807 2,093,658 2,309,685
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year 14,308,347 12,214,689 9,905,004
Net OPEE Obligation, End of Year $ 15,389,154 $ 14,308,347 $ 12,214,689

The Commission's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation were as follows:;

Percentage of

Annual OPEB
Annual Employer Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year End: OPEB Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation
December 31, 2014 $ 1,880,319 $ 799,512 42 5% $ 15,389,154
December 31, 2013 $ 3,084,672 $ 971,014 31.7% $ 14,308,347
December 31, 2012 $ 3,087891 3 778,206 25.2% $ 12214689
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NOTE 16

COTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {Continued)

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The actuarial accrued liability for benefits at January 1, 2014 (the date of the most recent valuation) was
$25,878,606. The Commission currently has no assets that have been irrevocably deposited in a trust for future
health benefits, thus the entire amount is unfunded. The covered payroll {annual payroll of active employees

_ covered by the plan) is $5,720,524. The ratio of the unfunded actuarially accrued liabilities (UAAL) to covered

payroll is 452.38 percent.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
oceurrence of events far into the future.” Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and
healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes fo the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time refative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (as understood by the
employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include technigues that are designed fo reduce the effect of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities, consistent with the [ong-term perspective of the calculations.

in the January 1, 2014, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 3.25 percent discount rate, which is based on the estimated long-term investment yield on
the general assets of the Commission. The annual healthcare cost trend rate is 8.2 percent initially, reduced
incrementally fo an ultimate rate of 4.4 percent. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized at a level
dollar amount over 30 years.

EQUITY IN JOINT VENTURE

Component Unit - Hibbing Public Utilities Commission

The Commission has entered into a joint venture with the Virginia Public Utilities Commission to form the Laurentian

~ Energy Authority, LLC {the Authority). The Authority is a limited liability company created under Minnesota Statutes,

Sections 452.25 and 471.59 and organized on January 31, 2005, under Minnesota Statutes 322B. The Authority
was created to supply 35 MW of new biomass fueled electricity to Northern States Power Company, an operating
subsidiary of Excel Energy, as weII as fo supply steam to existing custermers of the Hibbing and Virginia Public
Utilities Commissions.
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NOTE 16  EQUITY IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

The management of the business and affairs of the Authority are governed by a Board of Directors. The Board
consists of seven directors. The General Manager, Chairman, and Vice Chairman of the Hibbing Public Utilities as
well as the General Manager, President, and Vice President of the Virginia Public Utiliies comprise six seafs on the
Board. The remaining Board position is elected by a majority of the other directors.

Each Commission owns and operates a cogeneration power ptant which provides both steam and electricity for
distribution to its service area. The Authority is not regulated, Customer rates are set by the Board of Directors and
existing operafing and power agreeaments.

The Commission has entered into various agreements with the Authcrity including agreements for the purchase of
steam as well as operation and lease agreements. The steam agreement calls for the purchases of minimum
guantities of steam based on the escalating fee structure. The operating agreement calls for the Authority to pay the
Commission fees based on the operating costs of the Commission's facility up fo specified maximum amounts. In
addition, the Authority is required to pay the Commission an annual rental fee of $25,000.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, the Commission has reported on its balance sheet an investment
of $12,685,371 and $11,347,962, in the joint venture, which represents its share of manies directly invested and
casts incurred in the establishment of the joint venture as well as its 50 percent share of the change in the
Authoerity's net position for the year. In addition, interest of $133,687 has been capitalized in conjunction with the
development of the Authority.

Compilete financial statements of the Authority can be obtained from the Commission's Director of Finance. The.
following represents information reflected in the Authority's financial statements:

. 2014 2013
Current assets . 8 5,755,425 $ 5,543,955
Non-current restricted assets 10,055,530 10,784,038
QOther assets . i 1,604,105 1,808,932
Capital assets 53,220,520 53,790,989
Total assets 70,635,580 71,925,914
Current liabilities 13,030,709 12,646,137
Non-current liabilities _ 32,501,503 36,851,228
~ Total liabilities 45,532,212 49,497 365
Net position ’ ' 25,103,368 22,428,549
Total operating revenues ' 37,494,374 37,084,107
Operating expenses 32,861,688 35,017,159
Non-operating expenses , 2462473 2,691,353
Capital contributions - -
Change in net position $ 2,674,819 $ 277.303
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - STATEWIDE

A. Plan Description

All ful-time and certain part-time employees of the City of Hibbing, Minnesota, are covered by defined
benefit plans administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA).
PERA administers the General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF), and the Public Employees
Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF), which are cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement plans. These
plans are established and administered in accordance with Minnescta Statutes, Chapters 353 and
356.

GERF members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan. - Coordinated Plan members
are covered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are not. All new members must participate in
the Coordinated Plan. All police officers, fire-fighters, and peace officers who qualify for membership
by statute are covered by the PEPFF.

PERA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members, and benefits to survivors
upon death of eligible members. Benefits are established by state statute, and vest after three years
of credited service. The defined retirement benefits are based on a member's highest average salary
for any five successive years of allowable service, age, and years of credit at termination of service.

Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA's Coordinated and Basic Plan members. The
retiring member receives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a level accrual
formula (Method 2). Under Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan members is 2.2
percent of average salary for each of the first 10 years of service and 2.7 percent for each remaining
year. - The annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is 1.2 percent of average salary for
each of the first 10 years and 1.7 percent for each remaining year. Under Method 2, the annuity
accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average salary for Basic Plan members and 1.7 percent for Coordinated
Plan members for each year of service. For PEPFF members, the annuity accrual rate is 3.0 percent
for each year of service. For all PEPFF members and GERF members hired prior to July 1, 1889
whose annuity is calculated using Method 1, a full annuity is available when age plus years of service
equal 80. Normal retirement age is 55 for PEPFF members and 85 for Basic and Coordinated Plan
members hired prior to July 1, 1988. Normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security
benefits capped at 66 for Coordinated Plan members hired on or after July 1, 1989. A reduced
retirement annuity is also available to eligible members seeking early retrement.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - STATEWIDE (Continued)

There are different types of annuities available to members upon retirement. A single-life annuity is a
lifetime annuity that ceases upon the death of the retiree - no survivor annuity is payable. There are
also various types of joint and surviver annuity options available which will be payable over joint lives.
Members may also leave their contributions in the fund upon termination of public service in arder to
qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age. Refunds of contributions are available at any time to
members who leave public service, but before retirement benefits begin.

The benefit provisions stated in the previous paragraphs of this section are current provisions and
apply fo active plan participants.

PERA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for GERF and PEPFF. That report may be cbtained on the internet at
www.mnpera.org, by writing to PERA at 60 Empire Drive #200, St. Paul, Minnesocta, 55103-2088 or by
calling 1-651-296-7460 or 1-800-652-9026.

B. Funding Policy

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. These
statutes are established and amended by the state legislature. The City makes annual contributions to
the pension plans equal to.the amount required by state statutes. GERF Basic Plan members and
Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 9.1% and 6.25%, respectively, of their annual
covered salary in 2014, PEPFF members were required to contribute 10.2% of their annual covered
salary in 2014. In 2014, the City of Hibbing, Minnesota, was required to contribute the following
percentages of annual covered payroll: 9.1% for Basic Plan members, 7.25% for Coordinated Plan
members, and 15.3% for PEPFF Plan members. The City's contributions to the Public Employees
Retirement Fund for the years ending December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $302,558, $301,386
and $309,385, respectively. The City's contributions to the Public Employees Police and Fire Fund for
the years ending December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $499,151, 480,502, and $452,188, .
respectively. The Hibbing Public Utilities' contributions to the Public Employees Retirement Fund for
the years ending December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $397,098, $392,976, and $374,001,
respectively. The City and Public Utility contributions were equal to the contractually required
contributions for each year as set by state statute.

C. Future Change in Accounting Standards

As described in Note 1, GASE Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions,
as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsegquent fo
the Measurement Date, replaces Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Govemmental Employers, and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they felate to employer
governments that provide pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar
arrangement that meet certain criteria. GASB Statement 68 requires governments providing defined
benefit pension plans to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the
first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual costs of pension
benefits. This statement will be effective for the City's calendar year 2015. The City has not yet
determined the financial statement impact of adopting this new standard.
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DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Two council members of the City of Hibbing, Minnesota, are covered by the Public Employees Defined
Contribution Plan (PEDCP), a multiple-employer deferred compensation plan administered by the
Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). The PEDCP is a tax qualified plan
under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and all contributions by or on behalf of employees
are tax deferred until time of withdrawal. :

Plan benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment eamings, less
administrative expenses. Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353D.03, specifies plan provisions, including
the employee and employer contribution rates for those qualified personnel who elect to participate.
An eligible elected official who decides to participate contributes 5 percent of salary which is matched
by the elected official's employer. Employer and employee contributions are combined and used to
purchase shares in one or more of the seven accounts of the Minnesota Supplemental Investment
Fund. For administering the plan, PERA receives 2 percent of employer contributions and twenty-five
hundredths of one percent of the assets in each member's account annually.

Total contributions made by the City of Hibbing, Minnesota, during fiscal year 2014 were:

Percentage of Required.

Amount Covered Payroil Rates
Employees Employer Employee Employer
3 718 $ 718 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
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NOTE 18 RESTATEMENT OF 2013 STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES REPORTING CLASSIFICATIONS

in preparing the 2014 Statement of Activities it was discovered that certain 2013 Statement of Activities amounts were inappropriately classified, the most substantial of
which related to expenses between Primary Government - Function/Programs for Public Works and Culiure and Recreation due to how certain governmental
accounting amounts for Capital Outlays were eliminated against Public Works expenses when they should have reduced Culture and Recreation expenses. The
remaining reporting classification corrections related 1o classification of cerain amounts as operating grants or capital grants, certain grant amounts classified to the
wrong function/program, treatment of capital lease payments to the EDA-Component unit as Charges for Services versus being treated as a reduction of expenses,
additional clarification of the EDA-Component Unit interest revenue as a separate item versus being included as an operating grant and treatment of the governmenial
accounting elimination for loan principal revenues. None of the reciassifications or additional classifications added for the 2013 Statement of Activities impacted the
previously reperted amount for Change in Net Position. All of the restated amounts repcried below have been updated in the Maragement's Discussion and Analysis
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014. ’

AS AS Increase
REPORTED RESTATED {Decrease) Explanation
Primary Government - Governmental Activities
" Expenses

General govarnment 3,161,783 3,161,783 -

Public safety 7662166 7,662,186 - :

Public works 6,001,967 7,083,966 1,084,999  Governmental accouniing amounts for Culture &
Recreation Capital Outlays were eliminated against Public
Works expenses and should have been eliminated against
Culiure & Recreation expenses.

Culture and recreation 4,099,241 3,017,242 (1,081,999) Governmental accounting amounts for Culture &

. ’ Recreation Capital Outlays were eliminated against Public
Works expenses and should have been eliminated against
Culture & Recreation expenses.

Economic development 13,613 13,613 -

Transportation 281,970 281,970 . -

Interest on long-term debt 91,283 91,283 -

Total Governmental Activities - Expenses 21,312,023 21,312,023 -
Charges for Services

General government 334,197 334,197 -

Public safety 2,208,947 2,208,947 -

Public works 84,895 64,895 -

Culture and recreation 410,059 410,052 -

Economic development - - -

Transportation 51,781 51,761 -

Interest on long-term debt : - - -

Total Governmental Activities - -
Charges for Services 3,069,859 3,069,859 -
Operating Grants and Contributions - :
General government 12,686 - (12,686) Misclassification of grants between Primary Government -
) Function/Programs.

Public safety 345,435 769,519 424,084  Misclassification of grants between Primary Government -
Functicn/Programs and misclassification of grants between
capital and oparating.

Public works 301,733 322,585 20,852  Misclassification of grants between capital and operating.

Gulture and recreation 377,976 25712 (352,264) Misclassification of grants between Primary Government -
Function/Programs, .

Economic development _ - - -

Transpartation 221,333 213,772 {13,581} Misclassification of grants between Primary Government -

. Function/Programs,

Interest on long-term debt - - - :

Total Governmental Activities -
Operating Grants and Contributions 1,266,163 1,331,688 66,425

Capital Grants and Contributions
General government “ - -
Public safety 45,573 - (45,573) Misclassification of grant betwean Primary Government -
. Function Programs and misclassification of grants between
) . capital and operating.
Public works 1,432,743 471,294 (961,449)  Misclassification of grant between Primary Government -
Funcfion Programs and misclassification of grants betwaen
. capital and operating.
Guiture and recreation 5,082 945,679 940,597  Misclassification of grant between Primary Government -
Functicn Programs,
Economic development : - - -
Transportation - - -
Interest on long-term debt - - -
Total Governmental Activities -
Capital Grants and Contributions 1,483,308 1,418,973 (68,425}
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 19 RESTATEMENT OF 2013 STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES REPORTING CLASSIFICATIONS {continuyed)

AS AS increase
REPORTED RESTATED {Decrease)

Explanation

Interest on Loans Receivable
General government - . -
Public safety . - -
Public works - _ - -
Culture and recreation - L L.
Economic development - - .
Transportation - - R
Interest on long-term debt - - . -

Total Governmental Activities - B - B
Interest on Loans Receivable

Net {Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

General government {2,814,900) (2,627,586) (12,686)
"Public safety (5,062,211) (4,6683,700) 378,511
Public works ' (4,202,596) (6,225,192) (2,022,596)
Culture and recreation (3,308,124) {1,6835,792) 1,670,332
Ecenomic development (13,613) ©(13613) -
‘Fransportation (2,876) (16,437) (13,561)
Interest on long-term debt (91,283) {91,283) -
Total Governmental Activities - Net (Expense)
Revenue and Changes in Net Posifion (15,493,603} {15,483 603) -
Primary Government - Business-Type Activities
Expenses
Garbage and refuse collection ’ 2,314,388 2,314,388 -
Sewer operating and maintenance " 2,688,388 2,688,388 -
Memeria! building concessions : 862 862 -
Total Business-type Activities - Expenses 5,003,638 5,003,638 -
Charges for Services
Garbage and refuse collection 2,748,030 2,748,030 -
Sewer operating and maintenancea 2,971,439 2,971,439 -
Memarial building concesstons 6,523 6,523 -
Total Business-type Activities -
Charges for Services 5725982 5725992 . -

Operating Grants and Contributions
Garbage and refuse collection . -o- - .
Sewer operating and maintenance - - -
Mermorial building concessions - - -
Total Business-type Activities -
Operating Grants and Contributions : - - N

Capital Grants and Contributions
Garbage and refuse collection : - -
Sewaer operating and maintenance - 1,532,168 1,532,168 -
Memorial buikling concessions ) - - . -
Total Business-type Activities - : _
Capital Grants and Contributions 1,532,168 1,532,168 -

Interest on Loans Receivable -
" Garbage and refuse collection * - - -
Sewer operating and maintenance - - -
.Memoriai building concessicns - - -
Total Business-type Activities - )
Interest on Loans Receivable - - -

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Positio

Garbage and refuse collection : 433,642 433842 .
Sewer operating and maintenance 1,815,219 1,815,219 -
Memarial building concessions ' 5,661 5,661 )

Total Business-type Activities -
Net (Expense) Revenue

and Changes in Net Position 2,254 522 2,254,522 -
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 18 RESTATEMENT OF 2013 STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES REPORTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)

AS AS Increase
REPORTED RESTATED {Decrease) Explanation
Total Primary'Government
Expenses 26,315,661 26,315,661 -
Charges for Services 8,795,851 8,795,851 -
Operating Grants and Contributions 1,265,163 1,331,588 66,425  Due to changes noted above.
Capital Grants and Contributions 3,015,566 2,949,141 (66,425) Due to changes noted above.
Interest on Loans Receivable - - -
Total Primary Government - Net (Expense) Revenue '
and Changes in Net Position (13,238,081} (13,239,081) -

Component Unit - EDA
Expanses 315,947 65,694 (250,253) Equal and offsetting overstatement of EDA - Component
- Unit Revenues and Expenses related fo the elimination
entry for governmertal revenues on loan prinicipal
payments.

Charges for Services . 16,263 - (15,253) Capital lease payments made fo the EDA - Component Unit

- : wera reclassified to be netted against the EDA -
Component Unit's net expenses versus being reported as
Charges for Services.

Operating Grants and Contributions 286,375 - (286,375) Equal and offsetting oversiatement of EDA - Component
Unit Revenues and Expenses related to the slimination
eniry for governmental revenuss on loan principal
paymenis and proper classification added to delineate
Interest on Loans Receivable from previously baing
reported as operating grants.

Capital Grants and Coniributions - S -

Interast on Loans Receivable ) Proper classification added to delineate Inierest on Loans
’ - 51,375 51,375  Receivable from previously being reported as operating
" grants.
Total Component Unif - EDA- Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Position o (14,319} {14,319) -
Compeonent Unit - PUC

Expenses - 28,546,154 28,546,154 -
Charges for Services 27,175,843 27,175,843 -

Operating Grants and Coniributions . - - -
Capital Grants and Contributions ' - - -
Interest cn Loans Receivable - . - -

Total Component Unit - PUC- Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Position {1,370,311) (1,370,311) -

Total Component Units :

Expenses 28,862,101 28,611,848 {250,253} Equal and offseiting overstatement of EDA - Component
Unit Revenues and Expenses related to the elimination
entry for governmental revenues on loan principal
payments.

Charges for Services 27,191,095 27,175,843 (15,253} Capital lease payments made to the EDA - Component Unit

. were reclassified to be nefted against the EDA -

Compenent Unit's net expenses versus being reported as
Charges for Services. ST R

Operating Grants and Contributions 286,375 - (286,375) Equal and offsefting overstatement of EDA - Component
Unit Revenues and Expenses related to the elimination
entry for governmental revenues on loan principal
paymentis and proper classification added to delineate
Interest on Loans Receivable from previously being
reported as operating grants.

Capital Grants and Contributions. - - - -

Interest on Loans Receivable ) - - 51,375 £1,3756  Proper classification added to delineate Interest on Loans
Receivable from previcusly being reported as operating
grants.
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 19 ~ RESTATEMENT OF 2013 STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ﬁEPORTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)

AS AS Increase
REPORTED RESTATED {Decrease) Explanation
Primary Government - Governmental Activities
General Revenues
Taxes - Properly taxes, levied for general purposes 5,007,776 5,007,776 -
Taxes - Property taxes, levied for specific purposes 3,266,959 3,268,959 -
Taxes - Franchise taxes 162,739 152,739 -
Taxes - Tax increment financing - - -
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 8,024,094 8,024,094 -
Unrestricted investment earmnings {15,6786) (15,676) -
Gain (loss) on sale of capital investments : (4,924) {4,924) -
Transfers {455,000} {455,000} -
Total Governmental Activities - General Revenues 15,975,968 15,975,968 -
Primary Government - Business-Type Activities
General Revenues
Taxes - Property taxes, ievied for general purposes - - -
Taxes - Property taxes, lavied for specific purposes - - -
Taxes - Franchise taxes - - -
Taxes - Tax increment financing .- - -
Grants and centributions not restricted to specific programs - - -
Unrestricted investment earnings 2,162 2,162 -
Gain (loss) on sale of capital investments 10,400 10,400 -
Transfers 350,000 350,000 -
Total Business-Type Activities - General Revenues 362,562 362,562 -
Total Primary Government
General Revenues
Taxes - Property taxes, levied for general purposes 5,007,776 5,007,776 -
Taxes - Property taxes, levied for specific purposes 3,266,959 3,266,959 -
Taxes - Franchise {axes 152,739 152,739 -
Taxes - Tax increment financing - - -
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 8,024,094 8,024,094 -
Unrestricted investment earnings (13,514) (13,514) -
Gain {loss) on sale cf capital investments - 5,476 5476 -
Transfers {105,000) (105,000) -
Total Primary Government - General Revenues 16,338,530 16,338,530 -
Compenent Units - EDA
© General Revenues
Taxes - Property taxes, levied for general purposes - - -
Taxes - Property taxes, levied for specific purposes 120,055 120,055 -
Taxes - Franchise taxes - - -
Taxes - Tax increment financing 91,627 91,627 -
Grants and contriputions not restricted to specific programs 122 122 -
Unrestricted investment earnings 1,283 1,283 -
Gain (loss) on sale of capital investments ] - - ) -
Transfers 105,000 105,000 -
Total Component Units - EDA - General Revenues . 318,087 318,087 -
Component Units - PUC
General Revenues
Taxes - Property taxes, levied for general purposes - - -
Taxes - Property taxes, levied for specific purposes - - -
Taxes - Franchise taxes - - -
Taxes - Tax increment financing ) - - -
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 2,053,771 2,053,771 -
Unrestricted investment earnings 7,142 7,142 -
Gain (loss) cn sale of capital investments - - -
Transfers - - -
Total Component Units - PUC - General Revenues 2,080,913 2,060,913 S
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014

NOTE19 RESTATEMENT OF 2013 STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES REPORTING CLASSIFICATIONS ({contintied)

AS AS Ingrease
REPORTED RESTATED (Decrease) Explanation
Change in Net Position ’
Primary Government - Governmental Activities 482 365 482 365 -
Primary Government - Business-Type Activities 2,617,084 2,617,084 -
Primary Government - Total 3,099,449 3,099 449 -
Component Units - EDA ) 303,768 303,768 -
Component Units - PUC 690,602 690,602 -
Net Position - January 1
Primary Government - Governmental Activities 32,431,980 32,431,980 -
Primary Government - Business-Type Activiiies 21,323,570 21,323,570 -
Primary Government - Total 53,755,550 53,755,550 -
Component Units - EDA 3,327,589 3,327,599 -
Component Units - PUC 34,619,854 34,619,954 -
MNet Position - December 31
Primary Government - Governmental Activities ’ 32,914,345 32,914,345 -
Primary Government - Business-Type Activities : 23,940,654 23,940,654 -
Primary Government - Total 56,854,989 56,854,999 -
Component Units - EDA 3,631,367 3,631,367 -
Component Units - PUC 35,310,556 35,310,556 -
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014

NOTE20 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Consideration of Subsequent Events

The City has evaluated subsequent events through July 24, 2015, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

.85-



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year ended Déecember 31, 2014

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines
Gifts and contributions
Investment income (loss)
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government
Public-safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Economic development
Transportation
Miscellaneous

Debt Service
Principal
Interest and other charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING-SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Sale of capital assets

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES - JANUARY 1
FUND BALANCES - DECEMBER 31

Variance with

Final Budget-

Actual Amounts, Positive

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis _ {Negative)

Original Final

$ 5567205 $ 5567285 § 6216650 § 649,355
125,995 125,995 192,326 66,331
8,951,620 8,951,620 9,181,363 229,743
2,336,150 2,336,150 2,340,174 4,024
115,000 115,000 108,498 (6,502)

- - 11,178 11,178

10,000 10,000 41,831 31,831
65,550 65,550 77,189 11,839
17,171,610 17,171,810 18,169,209 997,599
1,939,546 1,939,546 1,758,622 180,924
6,493,587 6,403,587 6,157,736 335,851
3,141,849 3,141,849 2,851,711 290,138
1,772,399 1,772,399 1,872,387 {99,988)
124,000 124,000 16,473 107,527
295,625 205,625 469,883 (174,258}
2,633,198 2,633,198 2,258,793 374,405
- - 24,707 (24,707)
- - 14,128 (14,128)
16,400,204 16,400,204 15,424,440 975,764
771,408 771,408 2,744,769 1,973,363
(839,481) (839,481) (1,872,634} (1,033,173)

- - 12,212 12,212
{839,461) {839,461) (1,860,422} (1,020,961)
(68,055) (68,055) 884,347 952,402
12,812,841 12,912,841 12,912,841 -
$ 12,844,786 $ 12,844,786 $ 13797188 $ 952402
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LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA,

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year ended December 31, 2014

REVENUE
Taxes
intergovernmental
Charges for services
Gifts and contributions
Investment income (loss)
Misceillaneous

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture and recreation

EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances - January 1

Fund Batances - December 31

Variance with

Final Budget-
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis {Negative}
Originat Final

$ 586,043 3 586,043 $ 585,733 $ (310)
- - 310 310
19,814 19,814 18,785 (1,029)

10,186 10,186 13,208 3,022

- - 246 246

616,043 Gi 6,043 618,282 2,239
626,504 626,504 590,984 35,520
{10,461) (10,461) 27,298 37,758

10,461 10,461 10,461 -

10,461 10,461 10,461 -

- - 37,759 37,759

218,105 218,105 218,105 -

$ 218,105 3 218,105 % 255 864 $ 37,759
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CITY CF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

INFRASTRUCTURE CONDITION DATA
Year ended December 31, 2014

MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY GRAVEL ROADS INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City is required to account for and report infrastructure capital assets.
The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to function and are utilized primarily by the
public. They provide future economic benefit for a minimum of two years. Infrastructure assets are capital assets that
normally are stationary in nature and normally can be preserved for a significantly greater number of years than other
capital assets. The City's major infrastructure systems include streets, gravel roads, sidewalks, and bridges.

The City has elected to use a "Modified Approach” as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 for infrastructure reporting for its
gravel roads. Under GASB Statement No. 34, eligible infrastructure capital assets are not required to be depreciated
under the following requirements:

The City manages the eligible infrastructure capital assets using an asset management system with characteristics
of (1} an up-to-date inventory; (2} perfarmed condition assessments and summarized the results using a
measurement scale; and (3) estimated annual amount to maintain and preserve at the established condition
assessment level,

The City documents that the eligible infrastructure capital assets are being preserved approximately at or above the
established and disclosed condition assessment level.

The City commissioned a physical condition assessment of its gravel roads as of May 2013. This condition assessment
will be performed at least every three years. The study assists the City by providing current inspection data used to
evaluate current road conditions. This helps to maintain a City-defined desirable level of road performance while
optimizing the expenditure of limited fiscal resources. The entire gravel road network within the City is composed of
approximately 65 miles of gravel road.

A visual inspection of all gravel roads was cbnducted to assess the existing condition of each of the individual gravel
roads. Upon completion of the inspection, a level based con the condition is assessed to each gravel road based on the
following criteria:

Condition Criteria Level
Poor Road may have extreme potholes, standing or running water, - 1
soft spats, travel speeds below 5 mph or the road may be

impassibie.
Fair Roads may have some potholes or puddles, minor soft spots, 2

travel speeds up to 30 mph.

Good Roads are in generally good condition, graded, travel speeds : 3
up to 45 mph.
Exceilent Roads are graded, dust control applied, travel speeds up to 4

legal speed limit.
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

INFRASTRUCTURE CONDITION DATA (CONTINUED)
Year ended December 31, 2014

Except in the condition of an extreme weather condition, rain storm, or flooded condition, the City of Hibbing will maintain
gravel roads at a condition of Level 3. As of December 31, 2014, the City's gravel roads all rated at a Level 3,

The City expended $324,888 on gravel road maintenance for the year ended December 31, 2014. This amount in 2014,
included 6 road lifts and several spot road repairs. These routine maintenance expenditures delayed deterioration. The
budget required to maintain and improve the current level of overall condition through the year 2016 is a minimum of
$750,000 ($250,000 projected budget each year for the years ending December 31, 2014, 2015, and 2016).

A schedule of the estimated annual amount calculated to maintain and preserve its gravel roads at the current level
compared to actual expenditures for gravel road maintenance for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 2008, 2009,
2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, and 2014, is presented below:

Estimated
Annual Actual Funded by

- Year Expenditures Expenditures General Fund
20086 $ 125000 § 141244 § 141,244
2007 $ 132832 § 146959 146,959
2008 $ 139680 $ 1850345 $ 150,345
2009 $§ 175311 & 192,151 § 192,151
2010 $ 175311 § 183,088 $ 183,088
2011 $§ 180000 $ 331898 ' $ 331,896
2012 $ 200000 $ 382118 & 362,118
2013 $ 200000 § 379983 $ 379,983
2014 $ 306000. $ 324838 $ 324,888
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS
Year ended December 31, 2014

QOther Postemployment Benefits

Primary Governmént

UAAL asa
: Actuarial Actuarial - Percentage
Actuarial Value of Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Year Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) Unfunded AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
End Date (a) (b} (b-a) {ah) . {e) (b-a}¥{c)
12/31/2014 712013 % - § 30,818,896 $ 30,818,896 00% $ 8086793 3B1.1%
1213172013 MR2M3 3 - § 30761648 $ 30,761,648 . 00% $ 8,188,218 375.7%
12/31/2012 11/201% - $ 34926227 $ 34,926,227 0.0% $ 7,966,015 438.5%
12/31/2011 11172011 $ - $ 34267574 $ 34,267,574 0.0% $ 8,041,015 426.2%
12/31/2010 11/2009 8 - % 39707119 $ 39,707,118 0.0% % 8,103,552 490.0%
12/31/2009 1172009 8 - $§ 40,368,826 $ 40,368,826 00% § 8501336 474 9%
1213112008 1/1/2007 $' - $ 42,567,876 $ 42,567,876 0.0% $ 8623530 - 4938%
Component Unit - Hibbing Public Utilities Commission
) UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Percentage
‘ Actuarial Value of - Accrued , Funded Covered of Covered
Year Valuation Assets - Liability (AAL) Unfunded AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
End Date (a) (b) {bh-a) (a/b} {c) (b-a)(c)
12/31/2014 17172014 - § 25878,606 $ 25,878,606 00% $ 5720524 452.4%
12/31/2013 112011 § - § 35764656 $ 35,764,656 0.0% $§ 5874104 630.3%
12/31/2012 112011 $ - § 35764656 $ 35,764,656 00% § 5406288 694.5%
12/31/2011 1M2011 % - § 3b764,656 $ 35,764,656 00% § 5224385 684.6%
12/31/2010 11/2009 § - % 30,281,516 $ 30,281,516 .0.0% $ 4,975,828 608.6%
12/31/2009 11/2009 3 - % 30,281,516 $ 30,281,516 0.0% § 5065929 597.7%
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1

NOTE 2

BUDGETING

The City Administrator prepares a proposed budget for the City's funds on the same basis as the
fund financial statements. The City Council adopts an annual budget for the fiscal year for the
General Fund and Library Special Revenue Fund.

Legal budgetary control is at the fund account level; management control is exercised at line-item
tevels. Budget appropriations lapse at year end, if unexpended.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council. The Schedules of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual for the General Fund
and Library Special Revenue Fund present a comparison of budgetary data to actual results.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Excess of Expenditures Over Budget

Expenditures did not exceed appropriations in any fund for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2014

The Housing Incentive Special Revenue Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures for
the City's Housing Incentive projects.

The Small Cities Development Special Revenue Fund is-used to account for loan and interest
payments and administration expenditures for housing loans administered by AEOA.

~ The Minnesota Investment Revolving Loans Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the loan

and interest payments and expenditures for business loans.

The Other Postemployment Beneflts Debt Service Fund is used o account for the accumulation of
resources to be set aside for postemployment benefits.

The 2002 G.0. Refunding Bonds Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of refunded long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.

--The-2013A G.O: Bonds Debt Service Fund is used to account forthe accumulation of resources for, - - -

and the payment of long term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

The Permanent Improvement Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources and
expenditures for the City's major street construction projects.

The Privately-Financed Capital Projects Fund is used to account for special assessments financial
resources for construction projects for the City's taxpayers.

The Memorial Building Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources used for
acquisition or construction projects related to the Memorial Building.

The Capital Equipment and Improvement Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial
resources used for the acquisition of equipment and major improvements.

The Mining Effects Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the accumulatlon of mining effects
tax set aside for infrastructure and joint entity projects.

The Raceway Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources and expenditures
related to the Racetrack.

The MDI Maintenance Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources used for
maintenance censtruction of the MDI facility.
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMA.JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2014

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Special assessments. receivable
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Loans receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
* Accounts payable’
Due to other governments
Contracts payable
Unearned revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue:
Special assessments
Loans receivable

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

Minnesota
Investment
Housing Small Cities Revolving Other
Incentive  Development Loans Postemploy-
Special Special . Special ment Benefits
Revenue Revenue Revenue Debt Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 48,572 $ 24926 $ 84,808 $ 5701341
- 54,885 - -
$ 48,572 § 79791 $ 84,808 $ 5701,341
$ -3 -3 - 8 -
- 54,865 - -
- 54,865 - -
48,572 24926 84,808 5,701,341
48,572 24926 84,808 5,701,341
$ 48,672 $ 79791 $ 84806 $ 5701,3M1
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Capital

Equipment
Permanent Privately- ~Memorial and
2002 G.O. 2013A G.O. Improvement Financed Building Improvement
Refunding Bond Debt Capital Capital Capital Capital
Bonds Debt Service Projects Projects Projects Projects
Service Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 357,831 $ 307918 $ 2,520,400 $ 33,581 $ 206,855 $ 4,376,030
- 1,418 4,104 7,037 - 17,198
- - - 163,166 - -
- - - - 2,400 277
- - 61,863 - - 1,527
$ 357,831 $ 309,334 $ 2,586,367 $ 193,784 $ 209255 $ 4395082
$ - % 500 $ -8 -8 - % 10,408
: - - - 3,447 - -
- - 123,073 5,609 - 31,063
- - - - - 957,758
- 500 123,073 9,056 - 999,227
- - - 153,166 - -
- - - 153,166 - -
357,631 308,834 2,463,294 31,562 - 849,629
- - - - 209,255 2,266,457
- - - - - 279,719
357,631 308,834 2,463,294 31,562 200,255 3,395,805
$ 357,631 $ 309,334 $ 2,586,367 $ 193,784 $ 209285 $ 4,395032
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)
December 31, 2014

MDI

Mining
Effects Raceway Maintenance Total
Capital Capital Capital Nonmajor
Projects Projects Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS '
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,798,289 $ 246,532 § 20979 $ 15,727,858
Taxes receivable - - - 29,757
Special assessments receivable - - - 153,166
Accounts receivable - - - 2,677
Due from other governments - 12,000 - 75,390
Loans receivable - - - 54,865
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,798,289 $ 258532 $ 20,979 $ 16043713
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 - 3 - $ - $ 10,906
Due to other governments : - - - 3,447
Contracts payable - - - 169,745
Unearned revenue - 248,299 - 1,204,057
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 246,299 - 1,378,155
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue:
Special assessments - - - 153,166
Loans receivable - - - 54,865
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES - - - 208,031
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - - - -
Restricted 959,235 - - 4,970,185
Committed - - - 8,335,357
Assigned 839,054 12,233 20,879 1,151,885
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1,798,289 12,233 20,979 14,457 527
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOQURCES, AND FUND BALANCES $ 1,798,289 $ 258,632 $ 20978 $ 16,043,713
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Housing
Incentive
Special
Revenue
Fund

Small Cities
Development

Special
Revenue
Fund

Minnesota
Investment
Revolving
Loans
Special
Revenue
Fund

Other
Postemploy-
ment Benefits
Debt Service
Fund

REVENUES
Taxes $ -
Special assessments -
Intergovernmental -
Charges for services -
Gifts and confributions -
Interest 66
Miscellaneous -

TOTAL REVENUES $ 66

EXPENDITURES
Current
Economic development g -
Principal -
Interest and other charges -
General government -
Public safety -
Public works -
Culture and recreation -
Miscellaneous _ -

Capital Outlay - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 66

OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in Co-
Transfers out -
Debt issuance - -
Sale of capital assets -

829,000

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -

828,000

Net Change In Fund Balances 66
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 48,506

24,893

84,802

829,000
4,872,341

FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 " § 48,572

$ 24928

$ 84,806

$ 5701341
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Capital

i Equipment
Permanent Privately- Memorial and
2002 G.O. 2013AG.0. Improvement Financed Building improvement
Refunding Bond Debt Capital Capital Capital Capital
Bonds Debt Service Projects Projects Projects Projects
Service Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ - $ 120686 $ 349,815 -3 - § 1465207
- - - 76,063 - -

- 241,205 1,095,702 - - 2,303

- - - - 15,666 -

- - - - 274 10,384

- - 3,155 - - 5,102

- - - - - 1,175

3 - $ 361,891 $ 1,448 672 $ 76,083 $ 15,940 $ 1,484,261
$ - 3 - % -8 - % - 3 -
- - - - - 540,000

- 53,057 - - - 50,045

- - 1,326,814 114,358 - 087,318

- 53,057 1,326,814 114,358 - 1,677,363
- . 308,834 121,858 | (38,295) 15,840 {93,102)

- - 388,000 50,000 - 198,812

- - (50,000} - - R

- - - . - - . 8,151

- - 338,000 50,000 - 204,963

- 308,834 459,858 11,705 15,940 111,861
357,631 - 2,003,436 19,857 193,315 . 3,283,944

$ 357,631 $ 308,834 $ 2,463,294 $ 31,562 $ 209,255 $ 3,395,805
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CITY OF HIBBING, MiNNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES
Taxes
Special assessments
intergovernmental
Charges for services
Gifts and contributions
Interest
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current

Economic development
Principal ‘
Interest and other charges
(General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Miscellaneous

Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Debt issuance
Sale of capital assets

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Net Change In Fund Balances

FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 -
FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31

Mining MDI
Effects . Raceway Maintenance Total
Capital Capital Capital Nonmajor
Projects Projects Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 222318 - $ - $ 21581186
- - - 76,083
- 15,701 - 1,354,911
- - - 15,666
_ - - 10,384
- 233 28 8,895
- - - 1,175
$ 222318 15,834 $ 28 $ 3625210
$ - -8 -8 -
- - - - 540,000
- - - 103,102
- 3,701 - 2,432,191
- 3,701 - $ 3,075,293
222,318 12,233 28 549,917
411,139 - - 5 1,876,951
- - - {50,000}
- - - 6,151
411,139 - - 1,833,102
833,457 12,233 28 2,383,019
1,164,832 - 20,851 12,074,508
$ 1,798,289 12,233 $ 20,979 $ 14,457,527
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES
Taxes

General property
‘Taconite
Production
Homestead credit
Municipal aid
School replacement aid
Franchise
Other

Total Taxes

Licenses and Permits

intergovernmental

Federal granis
Federal Transportation grant
Bulfetproof Vest grant
Rural Access fo Emergency Devices
Fire SAFER grant

State grants
Market value credit
Locai government aid
Police aid
Police disability benefit
Firemen's aid
State transportation grant
PERA rate increase aid
Petro tank reimbursement
IRRRB
Other

County grants
Ambulance

Local grants
Police liaison grant

Total Intergovernmental

Charges for Services

General government
Bus transportation
Miscellaneous

Public safety .
Ambulance calls
Fire protection contracts
Other

Highways and streets
Miscellaneous

Culture and recreation
Rent '
Other

Cemetery

Total Charges for Services

2,470,128

458,754
476,765
1,686,096
411,139
150,360
663,408

6,218,650
192,326

232,691
6,755
173
308,290

1,847
8,082,406
194,842
13,298
73,451
143,246
24,366

31,502
25,305

1,730

41,461
9,181,363

58,059
11,980

1,871,464
5,120
6,882

506
167,066

137,504
81,623

' 2,340,174
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

‘ GENERAL FUND _
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES (continued)

Fines
Court fines ' $ 94 171
Police forfeitures 14,327
Administrative fines . .
Total Fines 108,498
Gifts and Contributions o 11,178
Investment Income (Loss)
Interest on investments 15,447
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 26,384
Total Invesiment Income (Loss) 41,831

Miscellaneous
Insurance recoveries -
Insurance dividends . 55,201

Other : 21,988
Total Miscellaneous 77,189
TOTAL REVENUES ’ _ 18,169,209

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government

Mayor and council 264 914

Elections 36,227

City administration 169,994 _

City clerk ) ' 458,641

City hall 76,358

Accounting . 48,000

Data processing 68,277

Legal ‘ _ 112,149

Personnel administration 145,311

Zoning and housing 311,525

Assessor 67,226
Total General Government ' 1,758,622

Public Safety :

Police 2,925,945

Animal Shelter _ _ 104,644

Fire ' 1,834,775

Paid on-call fire i 139,278

Ambulance 1,143,878

Civil defense ' . 8,216
Total Public Safety . 6,157,736

Public Works

Highways and sireets
Streets and alleys 2,006,801
Engineering 240,139
Garage 553,469
Street lighting ' 51,302
Total Public Works : 2,851,711
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

_ GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

EXPENDITURES {continued)

Current ]
Culture and Recreation
Recreation _ L 50,708
Memorial building 357,930
Municipal golf course 44 818
Parks 143,051
City Services : 1,275,880
Total Culture and Recreation 1,872,387
Economic Development '
Administration 16,473
Transportation
Bus 294,151

Miscellaneous

Cemetery 210,069
Public access ‘ 109,972
Insurance : 1,793,638
Donations and contributions : 37,873
Other 107,241
Total Miscellaneous 2,258,793

Debt Service
Principal ‘ 24,707
Interest and agent fees . 14,128
Total Debt Service 38,835

Capital Outlay
Transportation ' 175,732
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 15,424,440

EXCESS (DEFICIENC‘Y) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 2,744,769

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

Transfers out ' (1,872,634)

Sale of capital assets 12,212
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1,860,422)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 884,347
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 12,912 841
FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 $ 13797188
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES

Taxes
General property $ 416915
Taconite homestead credit : 79,983
Other _ -88,855

Total Taxes 585,733

Intergovernmental
State grants . .

Market value credit 310
Charges for Services 18,785
Gifts and Contributions 13,208
Interest ' _ 246
Miscellaneous . -

TOTAL REVENUES ' 618,282

EXPENDITURES
Current

Culture and Recreation

Library _

Personal services 414,050
Supplies 92,748
Other services and charges 83,848
Other 238
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 580,984

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 27,298

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer in : 10,461
Transfer out -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - ) 10,461
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES : ' 37,759
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 218,105
FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 $ 255,864
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

HOUSING INCENTIVE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES
interest - - $ 66
EXPENDITURES : ;
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE , - 66
FUND BALANGCE - JANUARY 1 48 506

FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 $ 48,672
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

SMALL CITIES DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES

Interest 3 33
EXPENDITURES ' ]
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 33
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 ‘ 24 893

FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 o $ 24,926
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

MINNESOTA INVESTMENT REVOLVING LOANS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES
Interest : $ 4

Miscellaneous

Principal on loans repayments -
Interest on loans repayments -

Total Miscellaneous -

TOTAL REVENUE ' 4

EXPENDITURES
Current

Economic Development _ : -

Miscellaneous

Repayments to DEED -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 4
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 84,802

FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 $ 84,806
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES

Taxes
General property
Taconite homestead credit
Other

Total Taxes

Intergovernmental
State grants
Market value credit
MSA maintenance
MSA construction

Total Intergovernmental
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service
Principal
interest
Other charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfer in
Transfer out

TOTAL OTHER FINANGING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31

Other 2002 G.O.
Postemploy- Refunding 2013A G.0.
ment Benefits Bonds Bonds Totals
3 - $ - $ 85,862 $ 85,862
) - - 16,495 16,495
- - 18329 18,329
- - 120,686 120,686
- - 64 64
- - 96,141 96,141
- - 145,000 145,000
- - 241,205 241,205
- - 361,891 361,891
- - 52,557 52,557
- - 500 500
- - 53,057 53,057
- - 308,834 308,834
828,000 - - 829,000
829,000 - - 829,000
829,000 - 308,834 1,137,834
4,872,341 357,631 - 5,229,972
$ 5701341 $ 357631 $ 308834 $ 6,367,806
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES

Taxes
General property
Taconite homestead credit
Taconite production
Other

Total Taxes

Special Assessments
Principal
Interest and penalties

Total Special Assessments

Intergovernmental

‘Fedaral grants

Public Safely Interoperable
Communications

Other

State grants
Market value credit
MSA maintenance municipal
MSA construction municipal
IRRRB
Other

County grants

Total Intergovernmental

Charges for Services
Rent and advertising

Gifts and Contributions
Interast
Miscellaneous

Other

TOTAL REVENUES

Permanent
Improvement

Capital
Equipment
and
Improvement

$ 249,054
47,727

53,034

$ 1,042,987
200,634

222,276

349,815

1,466,297

185
312,1H
629,363
153,963

1,096,702

10,384

3,165

5,102

1,175

$ 1448672

§ 1484261




CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMEINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES : Mining MDI
Effects Raceway Maintenance Total
Taxes
General property 3 - % . - % - § 1,292,041
Taconite homestead credit - - - 247,761
Taconite production 222 318 - - 222,318
Ofher - - - 275,310
Total Taxes 222,318 - - 2,037,430
Spacial Assessments
Principal - - - 73,848
Interest and penalties : - - - 2,215
Total Special Assessments - - - 76,083
Intergovernmental
Federal grants
Public Safety Interoperable
Communications - - - -
Other : - ) - - -
State grants .
Market value credit - C- - 980
MSA maintenance municipal - - - 312,191
MSA construction municipal - - - 620,363
IRRRB i - - - 163,963
Other - - - 1,528
County grants - 15,701 - 156,701
Total Intergovernmental - 15,701 - 1,113,706
Charges for Services
Rent and advertising - - - 15,666
Gifts and Contributions - - - . 10,384
Interest - 233 28 8,782
Miscellaneous
Other - - - 1,175
TOTAL REVENUES $§ 222318 § 15934 % 28 $ 37263218
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS ]
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES {continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service
Principal
Inferest and other charges

Total Debt Service

Capital Outlay
General government
Mayor and councl!
Elections
City clerk
City hall
Data processing
Personnel administration
Public safety
Police
Fire
Paid on-call fire
Ambulance
Civil defense
Animal shelter
Public works
Streets and alleys
Engineering
Garage
Culture and recreation
Memorial building
Municipal golf course
Parks
Library
Racetrack
Miscellaneous
Cemetery
Other

Total Capital Cutlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Dabt issuance
Sale of capital assets

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCES - DECEMBER 31

-89-

Permanent
improvement

Privately-
Financed

Memorial
Building

Capital
Equipment
and
Improvement

$ 540,000
50,045

590,045

1,326,814

114,358

19,740

84,573
13,830

68,739
66,406
21,405
326,148

141,500
8,379
102,873

55,877

1,326,814

114,358

987,318

1,326,814

114,358

1,577,363

121,858

{38,295)

. (93,102)

388,000
(50,000

80,000

15,940

198,812

6,151

§0,000

204,963

338,000

459,858

2,003,436

11,705

19,857

15,940

193,315

111,861

3,283,944

$§ 2,463,294

$

31,562

§ 200,255

$ 3,385,805




CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (continued)
) Year Ended December 31, 2014

Mining MDI
Effacts Raceway Maintenance Total
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
" Principat $ - 5 -3 -3 540,000
Interest and other charges ‘ - - - 50,045
- Total Debt Service - - - 590,045
Capital Outlay
General government
Mayor and council - - - -
Elections - - - 19,740
City clerk - - - -
City hall - - - 84,573
Data processing - - oo 13,830
Personnel administration - - - - . -
Public safety :
Police - - - 68,739
Fire - - - 66,405
Paid on-call fire - - - 21,405
Ambulance : - - - 326,148
Civil defense o - - - -
Animal shelter - - - -
Public works :
Streets and alleys - - - 1,519,021
Engineering ' - - - -
Garage - - - -
Culture and recreation
Memarial building - - - 141,500
Municipat golf course - - - 8,379
Parks - - - 102,873
Library - - - -
Racetrack - 3,701 - 370
Miscellaneous
Cemetery - C - - 55,877
Other - - - -
Total Gapital Qutlay - 3,701 - 2,432,191
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 3,701 - 3,022,236
EXCESS {DEFIGIENCY} OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 222,318 12,233 28 240,980
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in : 411,139 - - 1,047,951
Transfers out ) - - . - (50,000)
Debt issuance . - - - -
Sale of capilal assets - - - 6,151
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING ’
SOURCES (USES) 411,139 - - 1,004,102
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANGES 633,457 12,233 28 1,245,082
FUND BALANCES - JANUARY 1 1,164,832 - 20,851 6,686,335
FUND BALANCES - DECEMBER 31 $ 1798280 § 12,233  § 20,979 $ 7931417
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

HIEBING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - COMPONENT UNIT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2014

Economic Debt Service Funds

Development Tax Tax Tax
General Special Increment Increment Increment
Fund Revenue Fund Vi Xl Xl

Animal
Shelter

ASSETS . ’
Cash and cash equivalents $ 536,265 $ 668,308 $ 131052 % - % -
Cash - restricted - - -
Investments - restricted - - - - -
Taxes receivable
Unapportioned 1,231 - . 158 -
Delinquent - - 110,817 15,960
Accounts receivable 879 - - -
Due from other funds 1,664 213,000 - -
Due from other governments - - - .
Loans receivable - 660,942 - ] - -
Prepaid items . - - -

5 115,903
46,286

[ T '

$ 162,189

TOTAL ASSETS . $ 540,039 3§ 1,642250 ¢ 241827 § 15860 § -

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 2917 § - 5 - 8 - % 500
Salaries payable - 115 - - -
Due to other funds - - - 1,664 -
Due to other governments . -
Contracts payable 1,700 - - - -

Unearned revenue - - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,732 - 402 2..065 500

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue:
Property taxes i -

- 110,617 15,960 -
Loans receivable : : - 660,042 - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES - 660,942 110,617 15,860 -

FUND BALANCES .
Nonspendable - -
Restricted - ' -
Committed - 535,307 881,308
Assigned - - -
Unassigned - - - {2,066) (500)

130,808 -

162,189

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 535,307 881,308 130,808 (2,068) (500)

162,189

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND

§ 162,188

FUND BALANCES $ 540,038 % 1542250 § 241827 15860 § -
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

HIBBING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - COMPONENT UNIT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED}
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash - restricted

investments

Taxes receivable
Unapportioned
Delinguent

. Accounts receivable

Due from other funds

Due from other governments

Loans receivable

Prepaid items

TOTAL ASSETS

December 31, 2014
‘ Capital Projects Funds

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payahle
Salaries payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Contracts payable
Unearned revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue:
Property taxes
Loans receivable

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND

FUND BALANCES

Central Storefront District VIl District Xl .
Range Renovation Tax Tax Tax
Public Works Project Increment Increment Abatement Totals

$ - % 42 261 $ 65,640 $ 45765 % 49617 % 1,654,811
- - - - - 46,286

- - - - 173 1,562

. - 267 : - - 126,844

- 210 - - - 1,089

R _ - - - 214,664

. 300,172 481,924 - - 1,432,038

$ - % 351643 $ 527831 § 45765 & 49790 § 3,477,294
$ - 3% - 3 - % - % 9,068 % 12,485
- - - - - 115

- 213,000 ) - - - 214,664

- .- 402 402 - 1,608

- - - - - 1,700

- 213,000 402 402 6 068 230,572

- - 267 - - 126,844

- 308,172 461,924 - - 1,432,038

- 309,172 462,191 - - 1,558,882

- - 65,238 45,363 - 403,598

R - - - - 1,416,615

- - - - 40,722 40,722
- (170,629) - - - {173,095)

- {170,529) 65,238 45,363 40,722 1,687,840

3 49,790 § 3477294

$ . § 351843 $ 527,831 $ 45765
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

HIBBING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - COMPONENT UNIT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Economic . Debt Service Funds

Development Tax Tax Tax
General Special " Increment Increment Increment Animal
Fund Revenue Fund Vil Xl Xl Shelter
REVENLUES .
Taxes :
General $ 74893 % - 5 70,526 $ 14979 % - 8% -
Taconite homestead credit 14,318 i - - - - -
Other 15,910 - - - - -
Intergovernmental
State grants
Market value credit &6 - - - - -
IRRRB grant B - - - - -
Interest in Capital Lease - - - - - 38,835
Gifts and contributions - - - - - -
Interest 476 741 162 3 - 23
Miscellaneous .
Principal on loan repayments - 90,676 - - - - -
Interest on loan repayments - 11,435 - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 105,653 102,852 70,688 14,982 - 38,858
EXPENDRITURES
Current
Economic development
Community development 400 - - - - -
Administration 11,496 2,400 3,044 - - -
Professional services 7,563 - 402 402 - -
_ Leans - 479,972 - - - -
Tax ingrement projects - - - - - -
Debt Service )
Principal - - 30,000 15,000 - 24,707
Interest - - 9,000 3,183 19,434 14,128
Other charges - - - - 500 -
Fiscal charges - - 450 - - -
Capital Quilay
Community development 6,880 - - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 26,339 482,372 43,796 18,585 16,934 38,835
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 79,314 (378,520) 26,892 {(3,603) {18,934) 23
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt Issuance - - - - - -
Transfers in 109,034 - - 3,535 19,434 -
Transfers out (3,535) - - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
S0OURCES (USES) 105,489 - - 3,535 19,434 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 184,813 (379,520) 26,892 {68) (500) 23
FUND BAELANGCES - JANUARY 1 350,494 1,260,828 103,916 {1,998} - 162,166
FUND BALANCES - DECEMBER 31 3 535307 % 881308 § 130808 $ (2,0668) % {(500) $ 162,189
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

HIBBING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - COMPONENT UNIT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES

Taxes
General
Taconite homestead credit
Other
Intergovernmental
State grants
Market value credit
IRRRB grant
Interest in Capital Lease
Gifts and contrlbutlons
Interest
Miscellaneous
Principal on loan repayments
Interest on loan repayments

TOTAI. REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
Economic development
Community development
Administration
Professional services
Loans
Tax increment projects
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Other charges
Fiscal charges
Capifal Qutlay
Community development

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issuance
Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES - JANUARY 1
FUND BALANCES - DECEMBER 31

Capital Projects Funds

Central Storefront District VIII District X1l
Range Rengovation Tax Tax Tax
Public Works Project Increment Increment Abatement Totals

- . % - 3 11,796 $ - % 10,760 182,944

. . - 2,010 18,328

- - - - 2,233 18,143

- - - - 8 64

- - - - - 38,835

- - 7 243 142 1,867

- 72,925 - - - 163,601

- 10,085 - - - 21,520

- 83,010 11,873 243 15,143 443,302

- - - - 82,857 83,257

- - - - - 17.840

- 402 402 - 9,171

- 152,000 - - 5,532 637,504

- - - 700,000 - 700,000

- - - - - 69,707

- - - - - 45745

- - - 41,698 - 42098

- - - - - 450

- - - - - 6,880

- 152,000 402 742,000 88,380 1,612 652
- (68,990) 11,471 {741,757) (73,246) (1,169,350)

- - - 830,000 - 830,000

- - - - - 132,003
{73,812) - - (19,434) - (96,781}

{73,812) - - 810,566 - 865,222
{73,812) (68,990) 11,471 68,809 (73,246) (304,128)

73,812 {(101,539) 53,767 (23,446) 113,968 1,801,968

- % {(170,529) % 65238 % 45363 % 722 § 1,687,840
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. CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

HIBBING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY COMPONENT UNIT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ‘
ENTERPRISE FUND
December 31, 2014

Family
Center
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents . $ 510,690
Due from other governments
Loans receivable 421,866
TOTAL ASSETS . $ 032,556
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ -
Deferred revenue -
Due to other funds -
TOTAL LIABILITIES -
NET POSITION .
Unrestricted ' 932,556

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 932,556
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CiTY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

HIBBING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - COMPONENT UNIT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUND

Decernber 31, 2014

Family
Center
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services ‘ $ -
Miscellaneous -

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES -

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services -
Supplies ' -
Maintenance and repairs -
Contracted services . -
Utilities -
Depreciation -
Miscellaneous -

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES -

OPERATING INCOME : -

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest income -
Interest on notes 24,553
interest expense ’ -
Amortization : . -
Gain-on disposal of student housing facility -

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 24,553
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 24,553

Transfers in -
Transfers out -

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 24,553

TOTAL NET POSITION - JANUARY 1 ' 908,003
TOTAL NET POSITION - DECEMBER 31 $ 032556
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

HIBBING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - COMPONENT UNIT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUND
December 31, 2014

Family
Center
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ -
Cash paid to suppliers -
Cash paid to employees . -

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING -
ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer in from other funds : -
Transfer out to other funds - -
Prior year cash deficit payment ' -
Interfund financing of cash deficit -
Principal received on note 44,934

Interest received on note : 24,553
NET CASH USED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES _ 69,487

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase or construction of fixed assets -
Principal paid on long-term debt : -
Interest paid on long-term debt -
Sale of facility -

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES . -

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments -

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 69,487
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1 441,203
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 - - $ 510,690

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income 3 -
Adjustments to réconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash {used) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation -
Decrease in:
Accounts receivable ’ -
Prepaid items -
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable ‘ -
Due to other governments -
Customer deposits -

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES $ -
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

HIBBING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - COMPONENT UNIT
SCHEDULE OF SOURCES AND USES OF PUBLIC FUNDS
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICTS VI VI, X[,AND XII

Year Ended December 31, 2014

District type ‘

Authorized under Minn. Statute, ch#
Established in

Planned completion in

Original net tax capacity
Current net tax capacity
Fiscal disparity deduction

Captured Net Tax Capacity Retained by the City

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Bond proceeds
Note proceeds
Tax increments received
General property taxes received
Interest on invested funds
Grants
Local contributions
Miscellaneous

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

USES OF FUNDS

Building acquisition
Other public improvements
Bond payments

Principal

Interest and fiscal charges
Professional services
Administrative costs

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF SOURCES OVER
USES OF FUNDS BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS
Decertified district - remittance to County
Transfers to other districts
Transfers to other funds
Transfers from other districts
Transfers from other funds

TOTAL TRANSFERS

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF SOURCES OVER
USES OF FUNDS AND TRANSFERS

DISTRICT BALANCE - JANUARY 1
DISTRICT BALANCE - DECEMBER 31

-98-

Tax Increment District VII

Redevelopment

469

1993

2019
% 2,160
49,586
$ 47 426

Accounted
forin Current
Prior Years Year
$ 320,000 $ -
858,109 70,526
11,413 182
299,999 -
8,251 -
19,619 -
1,517,391 70,688
721,672 -
185,000 30,000
322,023 9,450
32,382 402
136,333 3,944
1,388,310 43,796
119,081 26,892
(15,165) -
(15,165) -
S 103916 26,892
103,916
5130608



Tax Increment District VIII

Tax Increment District Xi

Tax Increment District XH
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Qualified Housing Redevelopment Redevelopment
469 469 469
1993 1989 2012
2020 2025 2038
$ 472 $ 525 5 12,660
8,377 13,636 12,660
. 3073 - -
$ 7,905 $ 10,038 $ -
Accounted Accounted Accounted ‘
for in Current forin Current forin Current
Prior Years Year Prior Years Year Prior Years Year
$ - 8 - $ 165000 % - % - % 830,000
. 216,408 11,796 142,253 14,979 - -
5577 77 1,874 3 - 243
385,000 - - - - -
- - 67,786 - - -
18,670 - 2,786 - - -
625,655 11,873 379,659 14,982 - 830,243
555,095 - - - - -
67,302 - 253,248 - - 700,000
- - 115,000 15,000 - -
- - 130,325 3,183 - 61,532
10,593 402 32,243 402 23,446 402
30,205 - 45 - - _
663,285 402 530,861 18,585 23,446 761,034
(37,630) 11,471 (151,162) {3,603} (23,448) 66,309
(4,928) - - - - -
- - 35,055 - - -
96,323 - 114,109 3,635 - -
91,397 - 149,164 3,535 - -
$ 53,787 11,471 $ {1,998) (68) & (23,446) 68,309
53,767 (1,998) (23,446)
$ 65238 $ (2,086) $ 44,863
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
- ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Hibbing, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Hibbing, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31,
2014, which collectively comprise the City of Hibbing, Minnesota's basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated July 24, 2015. Cur report was modified to include a reference to other
auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptrofier General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial
statements of the Public Utilities Commission, as described in our report on the City of Hibbing,
Minnesota's financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of
internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately
by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Hibbing, Minnesota's internal control over
financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timaly basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combinaticn of
deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose dsscribed in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the internal control
over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies, and thersfora material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify
certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Responses as items 2014-1, 2014-2 and 2014-3 that we conS|der to be significant
deficiencies.

2302 East Third Avenue Hibbing, MN 55746 Phone: (218) 262-3404 Fax: (218) 262-1079
, Website: www.fortco-cpa.com



City of Hibbing, Minnesota
July 24, 2015
Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Hibbing, Minnesota’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an
opinion of compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinicn. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Minnesota Legal Compliance

We also conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political
Subdivisions. Accordingly, the audit included such tests of the accounting records and such other
auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions, promulgated by the State Auditor
pursuant to Minn. Stat. §6.65, contains seven categories of compliance fo be tested: contracting and
bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements,
miscellaneous provisions, and tax increment financing. Our audit included all of the listed categories.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City of
Hibbing, Minnesota failed to comply with the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide
for Political Subdivisions. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of
such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have
come to our attention regarding the City of Hibbing, Minnesota's noncompliance with the above
referenced provisions.

The City of Hibbing, Minnesota’'s responses to the internal control findings identified in our audit have
been included in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The City of Hibbing's responses were
not subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on them,

Purpose of the Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Hibbing, Minnesota's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City of Hibbing, Minnesota's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fort +

Fort & Company, P.A.
July 24, 2015



CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES
2014-1. SEGREGATION CF DUTIES

Condition

Due to the limited number of personnel within the City's business office, the segregation of accounting
functions necessary to ensure adequate internal accounting control is not possible.

Criteria

The concentration of duties and responsibilities in a limited number of individuals is not desirable from an
internal accounting control point of view.

Effect

Because of the weakness in segregation of duties, the City has not provided adequate intemal conirol over
its transactions.

Cause

This accurred because of staffing limitations caused by fiscal constraints.

Recommendations

The City Council should constantly be aware of this condition, attempt to segregate duties as much as
possible and provide oversight to partially compensate for this deficiency.

Corrective Action Plan (CAP)

1. Explanation of Disagreement with Audit Finding

There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

2. Actions Planned in R'esponse of Finding

The City Finance Director will attempt to monitor transactions and structure the duties of office
persannel to help ensure as much segregation of duties as possible within the City's staffing limitations
and funding constraints. The Finance Director will provide additional oversight to the operations of the
finance office. In addition, the City Clerk provides oversight, consistent with his statutory duties of City
Clerk/Treasurer, operating in a statutory City with a standard plan.

3. Official Responsible for Ensuring CAP

Sherri A. Renskers, Finance Director, is the official responsible for ensuring this plan.

4. Planned 'Completion Date for CAP

The City's Finance Director has been monitoring transactions and reviewing the duties of office
personnel on an ongoing basis.

5. Plan to Monitor Completion of CAP

The City Council recognized the weakness in segregation of duties and has continually provided
oversight to partially corpensate for this deficiency.
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014-2. FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESS - REPORT WRITING FUNCTION OF INCODE SOFTWARE
NOT UTILIZED

Condition and Criteria

The report writing function of the City's enterprise software package, Incode, is not utilized and fully
functional. Thus, as part of the audit, management requested that we prepare the general ledger account
groupings necessary to draft the City's financial statements, including the related notes to the financial
statements. Management reviewed, approved and accepted responsibility for the financial statements prior
to their issuance. i

Effect

Having the report writing function in Excel, outside of the Incode systém, gives rise to the potential of
account balances andfar account balance adjustments not being captured in published financial
statements.

Cause

" This situation exists because of staffing and software limitations caused by fiscal constraints.

Recommendations

In order to provide controls over the financial statement preparation process at an appropriate level, we
suggest management investigate the cost of utilizing the report writing function within Incode and establish
effective review policies and procedures.

Corrective Actioq Plan (CAP)

1. Explanation of Disagreement with Audit Finding

There is no disagreement with the audit finding; the City acknowledges that this finding is a result of
the SAS 112 requirements, which make this an expected finding given the cost/benefit of preparing the
financial statements.

2. Actions Planned in Response to Finding

The City will continue to evaluate the prospect of incorporating the report writing function within the
software system. However, given the current level of staffing, the City does not anticipate changing the
process for the foreseeable future.

3. Officials Responsible for Ensuring CAP
Sherri A. Renskers, Finance Director
Patrick L. Garrity, City Clerk/Treasurer

4. Planned Completion Date for CAP

No timeline; continue to keep under consideration should resources become available. For the time
being, Sherri Renskers will continue as the City's designated individual responsible for reviewing the
report captioning and adjustments being captured in the financial statements.

5. Plan to Monitor Completion of CAP

Patrick L. Garrity, City Clerk/Treasurer is monitoring the procedures to ensure that they are consistent
with the Internal Financia! Control Policy.

-103-



CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)

Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014-3. RECONCILIATION OF THE PAYROLL WITHHOLDING LIABILITY ACCOUNT -
MINNESOTA LIFE DEDUCTIONS

Condition and Criteria - _

In prior year audits, Fort & Company, P.A. noted a debit balance within the payroil withholding liability
account - Minnesota Life Deductions (which normally is a liability account and should have a credit
balance). The debit balance in this General Fund account was $2,923 at December 31, 2012. The debit
balance increased to $5,759 at December 31, 2013. Fort & Company discussed this account balance with
the Finance Department in the prior year audits and noted that the debit balance increased to $6,698 as of
December 31, 2014, As the debit balance continued to exist at December 31, 2014, Fort & Company
performed additional research to understand the nature of the transactions creating the unexpected dehit
balance. Fort & Company's initial research identified a discrepancy between the total payroll withholding
amounts and the monthly invoice from Minnesota Life. Fort & Company was able o see that some
individuals' rates on the Minnesota Life invoice were different than the amounts listed on their payroll
withholding amount for Minnesota Life for the month. Fort & Company communicated these finding to the
Finance Department for them to further review the nature of the discrepancies and identify the cause of the
inconsistencies on the Minnesota Life insurance invoice amounts and the payroll withholding and/or retiree
billing amounts.

Effect

The effect is to potentially have inaccurate withholdings on employees payroll deductions and/or inaccurate
billings to retirees.

Cause

The reconciliation process over agreeing employee deductions and/or refiree billings to monthly inveices
from Minnesota Life was not functioning properly. Additicnally, there could potentially be other payroll
withholdings that were incorrectly coded to this general ledger account and a step or process to review how
stich withholding amounts are coded was not in piace.

Recommendations

In order to assure that employee withholdings and retiree billings are accurate for Minnesota Life and that
the general ledger coding of all payroll withholding amounts are correct, we suggest that procedures and
controls are implemented immediately.

Corrective Action Plan {CAP)

1. Explanation of Disagreement with Audit Finding

There is no disagreement with the audit finding.
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014-3. RECONCILIATION OF THE PAYROLL WITHHOLDING LIABILITY ACCOUNT -
MINNESOQTA LIFE DEDUCTIONS {continued)

2. Actions Planned in Response to Finding

Procedures have been in place to ensure both segregation of duties and accuracy of payroil
deductions and retiree billings by having both the human resources and finance departments involved
in this process. However, relying on those procedures without fully investigating a debit balance
resulted in a growing discrepancy. Since the amount was materially insignificant for the financial
statements as a whole, a judgment was made by the Finance Director to not delay the issuance of the
financial statements in the prior year beyond the statutory deadline. Because payroll commands
precision, a comprehensive analysis of the discrepancies contributing to the debit balance was to
occur after the issuance of the financial statements, but due to time and staffing constraints it wasn't
completed until the end of the 2014 audit.

We have examined the underlying source documents and all transactions that have flowed through
said liability account and have identified all of the errors that led to a debit balance in this account.
Results of the investigation revealed a number of inadvertent errors involving communication to payroll
of incorrect voluntary employee life insurance deduction amounts, individuals remaining on the
insurance invoice after termination of employment, and coding of insurance premiums to incorrect
general ledger accounts.

The Human Resources Director has requested credits from the insurance companies for amounts the
City has overpaid. The City is waiting for credits from the insurance company, which should be
reflected on the August, 2015 bill. '

Correcting journal entries will be posted as of January 1, 2015 to address the remaining balance after
factoring in credits from the life insurance company and evaluating withholding differences with
employees.

Additional procedures have been put in place to enhance our existing procedures. Such procedures
include a change in responsibility for coding the insurance invoices to reduce the number of people
involved in the insurance premium withholding and payment process and increase the likelihood that
discrepancies will be identified. Additionally, a bi-monthly review/analysis of the insurance invoices for
accuracy of account coding, amounts, and employee/retiree deduction/billings will be performed by the
Accountant and/or Internal Auditor for life, health, and dental insurance. The Financial Director will
review the analysis on a quarterly basis.

3. Officials Responsible for Ensuring CAP

Sherri A. Renskers, Finance Director
Patrick L. Garrity, City Clerk/Treasurer
Tom Dicklich, City Administrator

Mary Ann Kepler, Internal Auditor
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CITY OF HIBBING, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014-3. RECONCILIATION OF THE PAYROLL WITHHOLDING LIABILITY ACCOUNT -
MINNESOTA LIFE DEDUCTIONS (continued) '

4, Planned Completion Date for CAP

Immediate correction of identified errors of deduction amounts were made with the June 5, 2015
payroit. Coding of insurance related invoices are now being completed by the accountant in the
Finance Department/Clerk's Office beginning with June Minnesota Life and July for heaith and dental
insurance invoices. Bi-monthly review and analysis of insurance invoices compared to '
employee/retiree contributions amounts and related deductions/billings will begin August 2015.

5. Plan to Monitor Completion of CAP

Patrick L Garrity, City Clerk/Treasurer and Tom Dicklich, City Administrator will monitor the procedures
to ensure that they are consistent with the updated procedures that have been set in place.
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